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          1  TRANSPORTATION AND MENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Good morning,

          3  welcome to today's hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committees on Transportation and Mental Health,

          5  Mental Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug Abuse and

          6  Disability Services.

          7                 My name is John Liu, I have the

          8  privilege of Chairing the Transportation Committee,

          9  and the additional honor today of co-chairing this

         10  hearing with my colleague, Oliver Koppell.

         11                 Today we're holding an oversight

         12  hearing on the operation of Access-A-Ride, the

         13  paratransit service here in New York City as

         14  mandated under Federal law that is operated by the

         15  Metropolitan Transportation Authority.

         16                 This committee  --  actually, these

         17  two committees have held a number of joint hearings

         18  in the past few years on the topic of Access- A-

         19  Ride.  In 2002, we had a hearing where the numerous

         20  complaints about the Access- A- Ride service were

         21  voiced rather vociferously, and at the time, the MTA

         22  had testified to many things, including the eminent

         23  installation of a new computerized scheduling

         24  system.  And so, we are here today a few years

         25  later, presumably after the new system has been
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          2  fully implemented and all the kinks have been worked

          3  out, to hear from the MTA about the state of Access-

          4  A- Ride operations today, and also to hear from

          5  advocates as well as users of Access- A- Ride, what

          6  ongoing problems there may be, what additional

          7  suggestions they have to improve the Access- A- Ride

          8  service, and to the extent possible, positive

          9  feedback on any changes that have been made for the

         10  better in terms of better service from Access- A-

         11  Ride.

         12                 This is an important program that

         13  seeks to provide equity for people with disabilities

         14  who require mass transit services.  That is exactly

         15  what Access- A- Ride is supposed to be, a mass

         16  transit service.

         17                 We're looking forward to hearing the

         18  testimony, and let me turn the floor over to my

         19  Co-Chair, Council Member Koppell.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL: Thank you very

         21  much Council Member Liu.

         22                 I am delighted to share the chair

         23  with you today.

         24                 Access- A- Ride is a critical

         25  service, obviously, for the disabled in the City of
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          2  New York, and we have been unsuccessful so far, at

          3  least, in providing a really comprehensive

          4  alternative, either through the mass transit system

          5  or through the taxi systems.

          6                 So, it's kind of a lifeline for the

          7  disabled, and unfortunately, even though it's

          8  obviously well intentioned, my district office, and

          9  I know the district office's of other members

         10  continue to get regular complaints about the

         11  service.  I will say that the Access- A- Ride

         12  executives have been responsive. They have met with

         13  me on a couple of occasions, and I'm not critical of

         14  their being responsive, but I think the service

         15  still leaves a lot to be desired.

         16                 We want to hear to day from  riders,

         17  users of the system, and explore how the system is

         18  functioning now, what issues there are with respect

         19  to the level of service that's provided, what things

         20  might be done to improve service.  So, this is a

         21  very, very important hearing.  It is with respect to

         22  a very critical service.  We've made great attempts

         23  both locally, statewide and nationally to provide

         24  access to the disabled, and allow them to live lives

         25  that are essentially equivalent to those of the non-
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          2  disabled, but we're not there yet, and Access- A-

          3  Ride service is an important aspect of providing

          4  that kind of a equality, if you will.

          5                 So I am looking forward to the

          6  testimony today, Mr. Chairman, and I hope that it

          7  will shed some light both on the current situation,

          8  and on ways that it can be improved.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         10  Member Koppell.

         11                 Why don't we invite Mr. Tom Charles,

         12  Vice President for Access-A-Ride at MTA New York

         13  City Transit.

         14                 We are joined today by Council Member

         15  Miguel Martinez from Manhattan, Council Member Joe

         16  Addabbo from Queens, Council Member Jessica Lappin

         17  from Manhattan, Council Member Michael McMahon from

         18  Staten Island, and Council Member Simcha Felder from

         19  Brooklyn.

         20                 Mr. Charles, please proceed.

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  Good afternoon,

         22  Chairpersons' Koppell and Liu, and members of the

         23  Council.

         24                 My name is Thomas Charles.  I am Vice

         25  President of the Paratransit Division in the
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          2  Department of Buses at MTA New York City Transit,

          3  which is responsible for the Access-A-Ride

          4  Paratransit Program.

          5                 The Access-A-Ride program is an

          6  advance reservation shared- ride, door- to- door

          7  paratransit service for people with disabilities,

          8  provided in accordance with the Americans with

          9  Disabilities Act of 1990.  It provides

         10  transportation for people who meet the eligibility

         11  criteria set forth in the ADA, persons who are

         12  unable to use public buses or subways for some or

         13  all of their trips because of physical or mental

         14  disabilities.  New York City Transit administers

         15  Access- A Ride; private contractors to New York City

         16  Transit provide the service.

         17                 When we were last at the Council in

         18  December 2002, the average weekday ridership was

         19  9,000 trips.  In September 2006, the average weekday

         20  ridership had risen to 13,393, an increase of almost

         21  forty percent.

         22                 Access-A-Ride currently has

         23  approximately 96,000 registrants, an increase of 14

         24  percent in the last year.  On weekdays in 2002, our

         25  reservation center received approximately 7,500
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          2  calls.  Presently, almost 10,000 calls are received

          3  on weekdays in the reservation center, a gain of 25

          4  percent.

          5                 As the program has grown in the

          6  number of people it serves, so has its budget.  As

          7  reported by the New York City Independent Budget

          8  Office, which studied the Access-A-Ride program in

          9  both 2000, and in a recent update this October,

         10  operating expenses more than doubled between

         11  calendar years 2000 and 2005, increasing from $85.2

         12  million to $189.8 million.  This year MTA New York

         13  City Transit is looking at a $50 million increase in

         14  costs, with total program costs projected at $239.8

         15  million.

         16                 The increase in costs is

         17  attributable, as the IBO acknowledges, to an

         18  increase in the number of passengers carried, not in

         19  the cost per passenger.  Thus, while the number of

         20  boardings more than double between 2000 and 2005,

         21  operating costs per boarding increased only 9.7

         22  percent.

         23                 When New York City Transit first took

         24  over Access A- Ride service from the City in July

         25  1993, there were 92 vehicles in the fleet.  In
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          2  December 2002, there were 847 vehicles in service,

          3  and another 100 were on order.  Now there are 1,405

          4  vehicles in service, with a projection of 1,512

          5  vehicles by the end of this year.  This larger fleet

          6  is critical to meet the demand for service.

          7                 Beginning in March 2003,

          8  Access-A-Ride has achieved and maintained a "zero

          9  denial" policy.  Each customer requesting a trip is

         10  offered transportation to their destination.

         11  Customers are able to request a trip one to two days

         12  in advance of the day on which they would like to

         13  travel.

         14                 With these continuing significant

         15  increases in trip volumes it was necessary to

         16  increase the number of contractors providing service

         17  for our customers.  Four additional contractors have

         18  been added to the eight existing service providers.

         19  This will not only help us meet the continuing

         20  growth for service, but also permit vehicles to be

         21  available for same day service issues.

         22                 In 2002, a new reservation and

         23  scheduling system was implemented.  As usage of this

         24  system has continued, a number of its features have

         25  been revised in order to produce more productive and
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          2  efficient schedules.  These features include on

          3  going speed adjustments, implementing speed zones

          4  and improved mapping.

          5                 In addition to increasing our service

          6  capabilities through adding new contractors, I want

          7  to mention two major initiatives of the last year.

          8  The first is the increase of our subscription

          9  service.  Subscription service is offered any

         10  customer who travels from the same destination at

         11  the same time of day for each trip, at least one day

         12  a week.  It reduces the need for customers to call

         13  to arrange recurring trips, and is beneficial to our

         14  scheduling.  Schedules are anchored to these trips,

         15  and encourage more efficient trips.  When this

         16  initiative began in January 2006, 2,190 customers

         17  had subscriptions.  Now, 5,762 customers are

         18  subscription users, an increase of 171 percent.

         19                 The second initiative is the

         20  installation of the Automatic Vehicle Location and

         21  Monitoring System to our entire fleet of vehicles.

         22  This is a complex multi- year project scheduled for

         23  completion in 2008.  This system will allow more

         24  efficient real- time control of paratransit service

         25  using the Global Positioning Satellite System, and a
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          2  wireless data communication network.  Mobile data

          3  terminals will be installed in all vehicles.

          4  Drivers will have maps of their routes, and with

          5  this system real- time information will be provided

          6  on the location of the entire fleet.  This will give

          7  us the ability to re- route vehicles in response to

          8  issues that arise on the day of travel.  A pilot

          9  installation is scheduled to begin in the second

         10  quarter of 2007.

         11                 Based on the most recent

         12  Access-A-Ride Customer Satisfaction Survey,

         13  performed in 2005, overall satisfaction with our

         14  service remains high.  Seventy- nine percent of the

         15  customers who were surveyed who used the service

         16  regularly expressed satisfaction with their service.

         17    Ninety- six percent of the customers surveyed said

         18  the Access-A-Ride is a good value for the money.

         19  This survey is conducted each year by an independent

         20  market research firm.

         21                 These efforts and initiatives of

         22  2006, in addition to the increased volume of

         23  service, are representative of the efforts of MTA

         24  New York City Transit to serve our customers.  We

         25  will continue in the future to strive to meet the
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          2  increased ridership which we anticipate, and to

          3  implement further initiatives in our efforts to

          4  improve Access-A-Ride service.

          5                 We're now prepared to answer your

          6  questions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

          8  much, Mr. Charles.

          9                 Do you know what the average cost per

         10  ride is today?

         11                 MR. CHARLES:  The full cost is

         12  approximately $50.00 a trip.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Roughly $50.00 a

         14  trip.

         15                 MR. CHARLES: Right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay so back in

         17  2002, it was about that level also.

         18                 MR. CHARLES: Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So while in 2002 it

         20  seemed to be a very high number, at least it hasn't

         21  gone up significantly.

         22                 MR. CHARLES:  Correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is that, given that

         24  it's been many years at that level, is that pretty

         25  much how much it truly costs to provide this kind of
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          2  service, or can additional efficiencies be

          3  introduced without taking away from the quality of

          4  the service?

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  Well no, I think right

          6  now we've had long-term contracts with our carriers,

          7  which are near termination.  We will be shortly

          8  going out with new proposals for another multi-year

          9  term contract, and we expect costs will rise. The

         10  labor costs, and their fuel cost totals.  We have

         11  seen a significant increase in intra-borough trips,

         12  going between boroughs.

         13                 So we see that in the next round of

         14  contracts we expect the cost to increase

         15  significantly.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Were any contracts

         17  recently renewed, or are all the contracts coming up

         18  in the near future?

         19                 MR. CHARLES:  We had two year options

         20  on many of the existing eight carriers but their

         21  expansion capabilities were exhausted.

         22                 So, we renegotiated, not only the

         23  extension, but we asked if the could expand, and

         24  many of them did expand, and they'll take us for the

         25  next two years.
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          2                 We have also added four new carriers,

          3  to not only address the increase in service but to

          4  start to focus on same day problems, see how we can

          5  manage and be more responsive to the problems we

          6  encounter daily.

          7                 This will give us enough time to send

          8  out a proposal for anywhere from a seven to ten year

          9  contract.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, so there

         11  hasn't been any bidding process for the last few

         12  years, but it should be coming up pretty soon?

         13  That's going to be a competitive bidding process

         14  that companies can compete for these contracts?

         15                 MR. CHARLES:  Correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  How much are these

         17  contracts generally?

         18                 MR. CHARLES:  They range in whatever

         19  number of vehicles they can bid for.

         20                 Some of them started out low with 50

         21  vehicles. Some are as high as 200, and it's quite a

         22  significant amount of money over a multi- year term.

         23    We can give you the ranges of our contracts.  We

         24  will be able to provide that to you later.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, and there was
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          2  quite  -- there were many complaints in 2002 about

          3  the quality of the vehicles.  Now I have personally

          4  seen that there are new vehicles on the roads, but

          5  there are still many of the old vehicles on the

          6  road.

          7                 So, is there  --  what would you say

          8  the state of the vehicles are today?  Are they

          9  vastly improved over the conditions of 2002?  Are

         10  the same vehicles still on the road?  Is there a

         11  schedule for replacing the vehicles?

         12                 What's the status of the vehicles?

         13                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, there's a

         14  replacement cycle of seven years.  We have a very

         15  strong maintenance duty cycle that we require from

         16  the carriers.  An inspection every 30 days, and as

         17  you know, DOT also inspects those vehicles.

         18                 The quality and repair of the state

         19  of the vehicles is very good.  Once we have a seven

         20  year useful life, we replace them with a new

         21  vehicle.

         22                 In fact, this year we started to

         23  introduce Crown Victoria sedans, similar to the

         24  taxi.  Now that we have information about the needs

         25  of our customers equipment needs, we can be assured
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          2  that we will send the right vehicles.  So now we can

          3  start to make use of sedans for ambulatory

          4  customers.

          5                 We're always looking to see at the

          6  next design of vehicle what would work to make our

          7  rides more efficient.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  What about the

          9  training of the drivers?

         10                 There were also complaints about,

         11  perhaps some of the drivers could have been better

         12  trained.

         13                 Is there any change over these last

         14  four years about the training of the drivers?

         15                 MR. CHARLES:  We have a requirement

         16  at the onset of the contract and as each hired

         17  driver must attend an 80 hour training, which is a

         18  mix of customer sensitivity, equipment  --

         19  familiarization with the equipment, map reading,

         20  behind the wheel driving experience, and at 80

         21  hours, inclusive of defensive driving, we'll then

         22  take them onto the next  --  we start them out with

         23  maybe a six hour run just so that they get

         24  acquainted with the service, adherence to schedule,

         25  customer interaction.              We call them in
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          2  periodically for a refresher course.  So, we've been

          3  concentrating on the training.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay but since you

          5  state that that was part of the contract, presumably

          6  there has been no change in the training of the

          7  drivers?

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  There's been more

          9  behind the wheel training.  We have tried to take

         10  some of the classroom work, map reading, and apply

         11  it directly on the road.

         12                 We think it would be better served if

         13  they were on the road gaining that experience

         14  instead of a classroom.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay and then with

         16  regard to the scheduling system itself, obviously

         17  there is a new system.

         18                 Is it working far better than the old

         19  system?  Is the scheduling that much efficient and

         20  effective?  Can you speak to the average length of

         21  the rides?  Has that  --  the duration of the rides

         22  because the complaint had always been that the rides

         23  were sometimes just too long because of the way the

         24  scheduling worked, is that improved?

         25                 Has a new system helped, or is there
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          2  still kinks to be worked out?

          3                 You know I just want to remind you,

          4  we are about to hear from the users of

          5  Access-A-Ride, so.

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  We hear from them every

          7  day.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

          9                 MR. CHARLES:  We know that scheduling

         10  is a dynamic process.  The system has helped us

         11  tremendously.

         12                 The volume of trips as I don't think

         13  we have a system that comparable to take the volume

         14  of trips that we're currently handling in New York

         15  City, and will increase.

         16                 The scheduling system allows a lot of

         17  parameters. Such as ride times, make sure that there

         18  isn't an excessive amount of ride time that the

         19  customer will experience.  We put in all of these,

         20  so- called, rules and as the calls come in for

         21  reservations, as I mentioned 10,000 calls, these are

         22  new origins and new destinations every day, and a

         23  schedule is developed, given to the carriers, and

         24  the day of service you look towards making sure

         25  every trip is conducted properly, but you have to be
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          2  prepared for events that may occur; detours,

          3  construction, weather, maybe a customer was not

          4  getting out of their appointment at the time they

          5  thought they were.

          6                 So, there's a lot of ongoing

          7  monitoring done throughout the day, and we do have

          8  our share of problems, and that's where the

          9  expansion is coming into play so that we can provide

         10  a little more flexibility on the road to address

         11  those problems better that they encounter.

         12                 But overall the scheduling system,

         13  and the reservation and dispatch has been a very

         14  useful tool to our service delivery, and helped us

         15  to address the growth that we've seen.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So I think you're

         17  essentially stating that there are no major kinks in

         18  the problem that still exist.

         19                 MR. CHARLES:  No major kinks.

         20                 A recent change is  --  what we found

         21  was and from our customers talking about their

         22  trips, sometimes they could cross over their

         23  destination, cross the road, they call it zig

         24  zagging.  We've asked our software designer to give

         25  us a modification to restrict how far a trip can
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          2  deviate from the tour, and keep it in the same

          3  direction.  We've implemented that in August, and

          4  it's proved to have been very effective to limit the

          5  distance and the time a trip can deviate.

          6                 One of the things we're watching out

          7  for is on the day of service, no matter what the

          8  good intentions are, not to have too much

          9  manipulation of the schedules, where they insert a

         10  trip, they thought it could be handled, and then

         11  upon review it wasn't a good decision.

         12                 So, we're trying to give them and

         13  make use of the scheduling parameters instead of

         14  manual inserts.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, and my last

         16  question and then I'll turn it over to my

         17  colleagues, is are  --  there have been some heavily

         18  publicized days where it was felt that perhaps more

         19  Access-A-Ride service would be needed on those days,

         20  Election Day for example.

         21                 Is there an effort to anticipate the

         22  increased demand, obviously not on Election Day, but

         23  the fact that maybe a day or two, or a couple of

         24  days in advance of Election Day, that there might be

         25  a spike in the number of requests for that
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          2  particular Tuesday?

          3                 Is there the capability to expand

          4  service on that day itself?

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  Well, it's difficult

          6  with the labor pool.  They have a tour, a

          7  commitment, on the hours and days. Some overtime is

          8  offered, but we couldn't have such a drastic spike

          9  in one day, and still keep their five week tour, and

         10  their scheduled tours of operations.  That's why

         11  during Election Day we sent out a flyer to our

         12  customers to be flexible, allow for more trips on

         13  Election Day, so that we could take advantage of the

         14  hours the polls were open from 6 a.m to 9 p.m.

         15                 But we're not able to just increase

         16  the fleet and increase the number of drivers to a

         17  major percentage for that spike in service.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But that might be

         19  just a function of how your contract is structured

         20  right now.

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, I think it

         23  would be worth it to, at least, take a look to see

         24  what kinds of changes in the contract can be

         25  implemented so that there would be this flexibility
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          2  in case there is an anticipated day where the

          3  ridership or the usage of Access-A-Ride is going to

          4  spike upwards, that there's a way to call in more

          5  drivers and get more of the vans on the road.

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  Well, we can look into

          7  that and see.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          9                 I'll turn it over to my Co- Chair,

         10  Council Member Koppell.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank you.

         12                 First of all, I note we've been

         13  joined by several colleagues, Annabel Palma from the

         14  Bronx, Diana Reyna from Brooklyn and Queens, and

         15  Gale Brewer from Manhattan, and I think Andrew Lanza

         16  was here as well.

         17                 Several questions, first of all do

         18  you have standards, for instance, if someone

         19  reserves or calls a day in advance and says, "I need

         20  the car tomorrow morning at 9 o'clock to go to the

         21  doctor", how close to nine is the driver supposed to

         22  be there?

         23                 MR. CHARLES:  Well, if it's  --

         24  we've developed two things.  The legislation says

         25  that the customer needs to be able to negotiate, and
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          2  we're not to go exceed an hour before or an hour

          3  after their desired time for pickup.  What we've

          4  found too, is we've asked customers to tell us

          5  specifically if it's an appointment, and then we can

          6  determine what's a good pickup to get from there.

          7                 So if the appointment is at nine, and

          8  we say we'll pick them up at 8:15, then the driver

          9  is scheduled to be there at 8:15.  However, there's

         10  a half hour waiting period.  So, from between 8:15,

         11  8:45, that driver would be considered on time if he

         12  arrived in that time window.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Okay, so that

         14  he can't arrive before 8:15.

         15                 MR. CHARLES:  He could arrive before,

         16  speak to the customer if it's mutual, but he cannot

         17  leave if the customer is not ready.  If it was 8:15,

         18  then 8:15 is the time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Okay so, but

         20  the flexibility is to 8:45, so if he's there by

         21  8:45, you would deem him to be in compliance?

         22                 MR. CHARLES:  On time, right.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Do you study

         24  how many times people have to wait more than half an

         25  hour?
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          2                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  In what

          4  percentage of rides is that true?

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  It's less than one

          6  percent, less than one percent.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So you're

          8  saying 99 percent of the time they pick people up

          9  within the half hour?

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  No, right now our on

         11  time percentage is running about 93 percent.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So why did you

         13  say--

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  But the pickup time I'm

         15  saying that they do have a  --  we monitor the first

         16  pickup on the first route, and it's usually in the

         17  high 90's.  But overall, throughout the entire days'

         18  service, we're averaging around 93 percent on- time

         19  performance.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Is that also

         21  for the return trip home?

         22                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Now how does

         24  that work if the person is not sure how long, for

         25  instance, you go to the doctor, you don't know how
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          2  long you have to wait?

          3                 Do they call up then, and say "I'm

          4  ready" or how does that work?

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  No, they  --  at the

          6  time of reservation, they will give up approximate

          7  time of when they think they will be available for

          8  pickup.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  And what if

         10  they're not ready?

         11                 MR. CHARLES:  Then they're asked to

         12  call.  If they see that they won't be able to make

         13  that time, they're asked to call the 800- number to

         14  alert us that they won't be able to come out of the

         15  doctors at the time they thought they would.       Remember

         16  , this is a shared- ride system, and the routes all

         17  have, on average, ten to 13 trips.  So it's laid out

         18  for the driver to meet certain destinations at

         19  certain times.  If that customer can't make it at

         20  that time, we ask them to call us, and then we'll

         21  see how we can make arrangements to pick them up at

         22  the time they believe they will be discharged from

         23  the doctors office.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  But the system

         25   --  you claim that they system is 93  --  with 93
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          2  percent of the time they're there within the half

          3  hour.

          4                 MR. CHARLES:  Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Do you think

          6  that could be improved?

          7                 MR. CHARLES:  Sure.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Because the

          9  biggest complaint we get is that they have to wait a

         10  very long time.

         11                 MR. CHARLES:  Sure.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  That's a major

         13  complaint.

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  Well, we are trying to

         15  improve--

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Sometimes it

         17  can't be helped but--

         18                 MR. CHARLES: -- we are tying to

         19  improve the on time performance.  A lot of it has to

         20  do, again, with this expansion that we're going

         21  through  --  we're four carriers bringing about 150

         22  vehicles.  We want to start to look at the routes,

         23  see how we can insert some flexibility, and this way

         24  address and improve on time performance.

         25                 For the very situations that you just
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          2  described, instead of taking another trip from

          3  another route, see if we can have a vehicle freed up

          4  to address that so they won't have a compounding

          5  effect on the other routes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Now that you

          7  have so many vehicles, have you thought of a system

          8  maybe in some parts of the City that we would be

          9  more likely  --  the black car system, or even the

         10  taxi system on a call basis, rather than having

         11  fixed schedules, have cars available to respond the

         12  way car services do.

         13                 Have you looked at that?

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, in fact we

         15  currently have about four percent of our trips are

         16  performed through black car service and taxis.  We

         17  started with the black car service with a three year

         18  contract, which is soon to expire this coming May.

         19                 What we've noticed in the first two

         20  years of the contract, the black car services were

         21  available, and very eager for our business.

         22                 However now with the good economy, we

         23  seem to be competing with the corporate structure

         24  who will pay a premium for the service, whereas, our

         25  contractual rates don't seem to be as attractive.
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          2                 So, we've met with many of the black

          3  car services to decide how we could approach it on

          4  the next round of contracts to have them be reliable

          5  to the trips we offer them, they are eager to do our

          6  business but there is a competition whoever pays the

          7  better rate, and that's what we are trying to see

          8  how we can negotiate, but we do currently have four

          9  percent of our trips using black car.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  That's

         11  interesting, and I'm glad you mentioned that but I

         12  was really thinking of something else.  I was

         13  thinking of your regular Access-A-Ride vans, or

         14  whatever you call them, being positioned in certain

         15  parts of the City, as do the black car.

         16                 So for instance, if a black car

         17  service serves my district quite a lot, they have

         18  places along the streets, none of us really happy

         19  about it, but there are places along the streets

         20  where they wait, they wait for a call, and then they

         21  respond from that location to the call, they take

         22  the person to wherever the person is going, and then

         23  go back to that location on the street.

         24                 MR. CHARLES:  Right, right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Have you ever
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          2  thought of providing your service that way, rather

          3  than on a scheduled basis?

          4                 MR. CHARLES:  Well, right now that's

          5  a concept we're going to float.  We, in anticipation

          6  that we will need a vehicle to address a problem, we

          7  send out a vehicle that has no schedule.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Right.

          9                 MR. CHARLES:  It's stationed at a

         10  strategic place in the City.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Right.

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  And then as a situation

         13  arises, we ask that vehicle to go take care of it,

         14  and then return and this way our command center and

         15  our carriers know where the vehicle should be to

         16  address other problems.

         17                 So, we're looking to expand that

         18  concept.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Well, I would

         20  suggest that that might make sense, given the large

         21   --  it's one thing when you have a limited number

         22  of vehicles, but now that you have hundreds of

         23  vehicles, it may work cheaper.  I am shocked at the

         24  $50.00 charge, by the way.  That's concerning.

         25                 The other thing that puzzles me, and
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          2  I don't want to deny anybody a trip who's entitled

          3  to it, but if people are using regular cabs and

          4  regular cars, do they really need Access A- Ride?

          5                 I mean, is anybody monitoring that to

          6  make sure this is not somebody using it as a

          7  limousine service?

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  We do monitor it.  If

          9  they pass through the eligibility process, and are

         10  deemed that they are

         11  not able to make use of subway or bus, then our

         12  ambulatory customers especially could make use of a

         13  taxi or a voucher, they don't need a wheelchair

         14  lift.  We offer that service to them, so we do

         15  monitor -- we do in fact have them go to assessment

         16  centers, medical professionals look over their

         17  disabilities and their conditions to see can they

         18  make use of the subway or bus, if not, we grant them

         19  some type of eligibility, whether it be conditional,

         20  full, temporary, but they won't be authorized the

         21  car service unless they are eligible for Access- A-

         22  Ride.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Well, using a

         24  subway or bus but if  --  what if they could use a

         25  car service or a taxi?             That's not the

                                                            33

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND MENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  test?

          3                 MR. CHARLES:  No.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Even if they

          5  might have the resources to pay for it.

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  No.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  I could see

          8  that a poor person can use the taxi, that's not very

          9  good for a person that can't afford the taxi.

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  Legislation doesn't

         11  describe income limits.  It talks about the ability

         12  to use mass transit or not. If you can't use mass

         13  transit, then you're eligible for paratransit.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  But the cost

         15  per trip if let's say someone's just elderly and

         16  can't use the stairs, or ill and can't use the

         17  stairs, had a heart condition, I could well see that

         18  they might need to use a taxi, does the same subsidy

         19  apply to that person as does someone who needs a

         20  wheelchair?

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  It's an equal trip to

         22  those who are what we consider ambulatory, and

         23  wheelchair.  They are all our customers, and

         24  whatever mode of transportation we can get them to

         25  their destinations, that's what we offer.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  But you don't

          3  pay the same amount per trip do you if they're using

          4  a--

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  No, that was the

          6  contract that I referenced earlier, three year

          7  contract.

          8                 However as I said, they're telling me

          9  these rates now, times are different, the economy

         10  has changed, their drivers receive much better rates

         11  of pay from corporate, so our contractual rates  --

         12  like we can see every morning when we

         13  ask  --  we've committed so many trips, can you do

         14  that?  They'll tell us, "well there's a three hour

         15  delay, my drivers are tied up."

         16                 So it has been cost effective but in

         17  meeting with the black car services, they are

         18  informing us that the pay rates in their paybooks

         19  will certainly increase.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  But you don't

         21  pay them the same as you pay the vans?

         22                 MR. CHARLES:  Not currently now, no.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So how much is

         24  the average trip in the black car?

         25                 MR. CHARLES:  In the car service it's
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          2  about, the average, about $25.00.

          3                 We certainly would like to keep to

          4  that but upon meeting with them, we don't see that

          5  as a viable option right now.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Does any other

          7  of our colleagues have a question?

          8                 Council Member Addabbo, yes?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chair.  I want to thank both Committees and both

         11  Chairs for their work on this hearing, and the

         12  staff, and Mr. Charles, thank you very much for your

         13  efforts with regards to Access- A- Ride.

         14                 Many of my constituents, obviously,

         15  take part and utilize the service, and I appreciate

         16  your efforts with Access- A Ride, and I speak to

         17  them often, and I really value their opinion because

         18  I don't utilize the service but they do.

         19                 I guess that's my questioning or line

         20  of questioning, that was the opinion and the hearing

         21  from the riders.  I think that's very important.

         22                 You had mentioned in your testimony a

         23  customer satisfaction survey.  I guess that's one

         24  way that you may interact with the ridership.  Is

         25  this an annual survey?
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          2                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  It is an

          4  annual survey, and how is it administered?

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  Usually at the end of

          6  the year we have an independent market research

          7  firm, we have a list of questions, we've asked

          8  general questions about the condition of the

          9  vehicles, the appropriateness of the ride, the

         10  scheduling. We may even ask some operational

         11  questions, such as last year we asked if they would

         12  be willing to give us their cell phone numbers so

         13  that we could make better connections instead of

         14  calling their home if they are waiting outside.  Now

         15  that the cell phone is becoming a useful tool, many

         16  of them in the survey said they would be willing to

         17  give us that, and we're trying to make use of that

         18  information.

         19                 Generally we look at each borough,

         20  and we have a grouping of those who ride the service

         21  frequently, to those that are infrequent, and based

         22  on sampling, they will go out and interview from

         23  each borough a select group of customers.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Just so I am

         25  clear, it's a written survey that is mailed to the
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          2  riders?

          3                 MR. CHARLES:  No, it's a telephone

          4  survey.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  It's over

          6  the phone, to all those who have qualified for the

          7  service, correct?

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  Correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Basically,

         10  you gather the information, and then on your end you

         11  review the information from the surveys

         12  collectively?

         13                 MR. CHARLES:  The research firm

         14  produces a report, shows us their statistics, how

         15  they've compiled all the answers, and give us an

         16  idea of the percentages of responses.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  And where

         18  appropriate, do you file back to the riders who had,

         19  at least, participated in the survey?

         20                 Do you call them back with any follow

         21  up, or no?

         22                 MR. CHARLES:  Not to the customers in

         23  general.            Generally we, in our newsletter,

         24  we'll talk about the survey and we'll look at where

         25  we received unfavorable responses, and see what we
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          2  can do to address them.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Do the

          4  riders get any information on the survey they took

          5  part in?

          6                 Is there any information back to

          7  them?

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  To the specific

          9  customers how was asked?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Right, so

         11  they can see that something is being done, or that

         12  they see, of the survey that they took part in how

         13  their answer may stack up against other riders?

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  No, we just do a

         15  general information on our newsletter.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Is it

         17  possible that somehow, some way, we can get this

         18  information back down to the riders as far as how

         19  the survey is  --  either how it was conducted, the

         20  information that the survey found, the follow up

         21  that they, again, may have addressed a certain

         22  issue?

         23                 Is there any way we can get that

         24  information back down to the riders?

         25                 You have their information,
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          2  obviously, if they qualify for the service, you have

          3  their name, their address, their phone numbers, so

          4  there is a way to get information back to them.

          5                 Can we look into doing that?

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  I'll see if we can do

          7  that.  I'll look into that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  What other

          9  way, other than the annual survey, and again, I

         10  think the annual survey is helpful, but what other

         11  way, other than the other survey  --  so from, when

         12  is the survey given again, Mr. Charles.

         13                 MR. CHARLES:  It's once a year,

         14  usually, in fact right now, the 2006 is being

         15  conducted.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  So right

         17  around towards the end of the year for the prior

         18  year, correct?

         19                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  In between

         21  that time, if somebody had a complaint, how would

         22  they normally go through the process of complaining

         23  about a certain issue, a certain driver, a certain

         24  issue?

         25                 How are they complaining to you
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          2  before they have to wait for another survey?

          3                 MR. CHARLES:  The survey is just one

          4  tool.  We receive our complaints either by phone, by

          5  e- mail, by letter, and we investigate and respond

          6  to the customer on what we found on the

          7  investigation, what we've asked the carrier to do,

          8  whether it be the call center having a problem or a

          9  misunderstanding, and we try to clarify through the

         10  response to the customer.  So, the survey is just

         11  one tool.

         12                 We constantly are reviewing our

         13  complaints, getting back to customers to let them

         14  know what we found, and what we can do about that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  So on the

         16  other  -- other than the survey, the phone calls,

         17  the e- mails, the fax's, what have you, there is

         18  correspondence back to the person who made the

         19  complaint on how that issue is being addressed?

         20                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Okay, we

         22  can--

         23                 MR. CHARLES:  We also have outreach

         24  activities, we conduct numerous outreach activities.

         25    We have our newsletter that comes out seasonally,
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          2  and we have a Paratransit Advisory Committee.  We

          3  meet every two months to address issues and

          4  concerns, or to announce new developments in our

          5  system.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Okay, again

          7  if I could just request that there is follow up on

          8  one end, if we could just follow up with the survey

          9  so that these people who had took the time out to

         10  participate in this survey, that they can get some

         11  information back.  I think that would be helpful.

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  Okay.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  I look

         14  forward to working with you in the future.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairs.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         18  Member Addabbo.

         19                 Questions from Council Member Brewer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you,

         21  and I want to thank Mr. Charles because you and your

         22  staff are very responsive. I know Ann Cunningham

         23  from your office was hear today, we call you all the

         24  time, and we appreciate the response.

         25                 Two things, and if this got covered
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          2  let me know. But in terms of the GPS and the

          3  wireless and the ABL, what is  -- I know this is

          4  going to be completed in 2008 and you're going to do

          5  pilots in 2007.

          6                 Are you using the City's wireless,

          7  how are you doing the wireless?  In other words,

          8  there's a security  --  a public safety security

          9  wireless system, as you know, that's

         10  going in with Northrop Grumman, are you doing your

         11  own?  How are you --

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, we are making use

         13  of Verizon and we have our own within the transit

         14  network.  So, we will be  --  all the security

         15  issues with New York City Transit's network will be

         16  considered.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and

         18  then  --  so it's Verizon and the transit network.

         19  And in terms of the  -- are the ABL's are not in

         20  each van yet?  They are going in, is that the idea?

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  They will be going in,

         22  they will have a mobile data transfer which will not

         23  only have them see maps, map reading, but will allow

         24  some text messaging so that they can report back to

         25  dispatch on situations, or get directions from us,
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          2  instructions.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  But right if

          4   --  as happens to constituents, and I'm sure for

          5  all of us, you're waiting for an appointment to be

          6  picked up, it's late, you would obviously call what

          7  I would call the`base station', but you probably

          8  have a--

          9                 MR. CHARLES:  Command center.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: -- fancier

         11  name, right. And then that individual contacts the

         12  driver.

         13                 Is that how it works?

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  The command center

         15  receives the call, and will then reach out to the

         16  carrier who has a dispatch unit, and if need be,

         17  they will reach the driver via Nextel to find out

         18  what the situation is.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Yes.

         20                 MR. CHARLES:  We also are monitoring

         21  the trips. There are logs, trip logs, that record

         22  conversations and events, and the dispatch makes

         23  decisions whether that route is on schedule, or

         24  we'll have a problem and try to arrange trips to be

         25  addressed more effectively.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Because what

          3  happens I think, is for the person who's waiting, is

          4  sometimes  --  because we actually called all the

          5  senior centers on the West Side and got a sense of

          6  where some of the concerns are.

          7                 I think there were around 50

          8  complaints, and considering that you probably have

          9  hundreds and hundreds, that's not a lot but people

         10  actually write in, and they're trying to be

         11  responsive, and there are a lot of them.

         12                 But if you are waiting, and say for

         13  instance, the driver indicates later that he went by

         14  you and didn't see you, but you don't really  --  I

         15  guess unless the person has a cell phone, the

         16  constituents who's waiting, the communication is

         17  very lengthy because it goes from the person who's

         18  waiting, to the command center, to somebody and then

         19  to the driver.  Is that the idea?

         20                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And is that

         22  because there's nobody  --  I mean, it's hard to

         23  talk on the phone while you're driving.

         24                 MR. CHARLES: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I mean, I'm

                                                            45

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND MENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  trying to think of how the communication is very

          3  lengthy between the passenger waiting and the

          4  driver.

          5                 Is there any way the technology will

          6  assist with that?

          7                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, the AVLM will

          8  first of all tell us exactly where the vehicle is.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  It will let us know for

         11  sure, whether that driver can make that trip or not.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Is that 2008?

         13    There's no way of speeding that up to 2007?

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  Well, it'll be rolled

         15  out beginning in 2007.

         16                 So, each carrier will come on- line,

         17  will start to make use of the service.  But all 12

         18  won't be on- line until the end of 2008.  So, we

         19  will see the benefit as we roll it out in 2007.

         20                 I'm anticipating late spring to start

         21  to see the mini fleet make use of the system, and

         22  throughout 2007, each carrier will have some of

         23  their vehicles and routes, and so we'll have some

         24  benefit but we won't have the full system until

         25  2008.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay in terms

          3  of packages, what's the weight issue with guarding

          4  packages if somebody's coming from the grocery store

          5  with a lot of packages?

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, we advise them it

          7  should be 40 pounds or less, and should be something

          8  they can carry in their arms.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  It's a shared- ride

         11  system.  In fact, we just sent out, to place on each

         12  vehicle, some expectations from the drivers, what do

         13  we expect of them, and what we expect of the

         14  customers, and that's one of the items--

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Do you weight

         16  it there? How do you actually know it's 40 pounds?

         17                 MR. CHARLES:  No, it's generally just

         18  visually seeing that carrying packages--

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, but I

         20  guess that would be something that there could be a

         21  little leeway in.  I mean, in other words, if you--

         22                 MR. CHARLES:  It's difficult.  We've

         23  had instances where someone was called to Costco's

         24  to pickup crates of water. We can't do that.  It's a

         25  shared- ride system.  We need the isles to be free
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          2  and clear, the seats, so generally  --  the general

          3  rule of thumb is that it's packages you can carry.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, it's an

          5  issue. There are about 12 to 15 that came in just on

          6  that issue.

          7                 The other question is regarding

          8  reimbursement. Say for instance, you have to take a

          9  cab late, et cetera, how does the reimbursement

         10  work, and how long does it take to get reimbursed?

         11                 MR. CHARLES:  Well, we gave them an

         12  authorization number, which they should place on the

         13  receipt of the taxi or car service, send it into us.

         14    We've just increased our staff to make that

         15  process a two week turn- a- round.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Two weeks.

         17                 MR. CHARLES:  Two weeks.  It used to

         18  be at four, we're not down to two weeks, and we're

         19  going to try to get it down to seven days if

         20  possible.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and so

         22  and then they get a check, is that what they get?

         23  Or something to that effect?

         24                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, they get the check

         25  less the $2.00 Access-A-Ride fare.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, now is

          3  there some way that  --  what do you think the

          4  percentage of your constituents or your passengers

          5  with cell phones available to you is?  Ten percent,

          6  fifteen?

          7                 MR. CHARLES:  I think we're at 30

          8  percent right now because we've asked for it on the

          9  applications since learning that we were seeing a

         10  solid response to the cell phone use, and at

         11  reservations when they call, we ask if they would

         12  mind giving us their cell phone to help with the

         13  connection.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and if

         15  some people don't want to do that, then maybe the

         16  Paratransit Advisory Group could say, `we need some

         17  help getting everybody to sign up with your cell

         18  phone.'  Because sometimes, particularly seniors,

         19  are nervous about giving out the number.

         20                 If there are seniors who don't have

         21  it, but who would like it but can't because of

         22  financial constraints, that's something that maybe

         23  as a city we could work on.  I know in my office we

         24  give them all to domestic violence centers because

         25  people drop off old cell phones all day long.
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          2                 So maybe somebody could work to make

          3  this another constituency that could, at least, have

          4  a two- way or some kind of communication.

          5                 Is that something that you've thought

          6  of, trying to get that up to 100 percent, the

          7  balance of the 30 percent?

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  No, actually I have

          9  been hoping that AVLM will cut back the need for

         10  that because now we'll now precisely where the

         11  vehicle is, where the customer is, and there won't

         12  be a dispute about the driver not being there or

         13  being in the wrong location.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay because

         15   --  all right, but in the interim, it might be

         16  something to, at least, try to get those who have

         17  cell phones comfortable about giving them that

         18  information.

         19                 MR. CHARLES:  Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, I

         21  appreciate that.              I mean, there's  --  I

         22  hope technology helps but you definitely need, at

         23  least, in the next year if technology is going to

         24  help, or two years, some kind of better

         25  communication between those who are challenged in
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          2  terms of waiting, and the communication.  And if

          3  it's cell phone, or if it's figuring out the level

          4  of discussion that would help that, it would be

          5  better.             It's a great service but there

          6  are major communication issues.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         10  Member Brewer.

         11                 Questions from Council Member Palma.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Thank you.

         13                 I want to, Mr. Charles, ask you  --

         14  I know my colleague asked you questions in terms of

         15  the survey.  I'm interested in knowing, is the

         16  survey geared to the clients that are here in the

         17  City of New York, or is it a survey that takes

         18  account, opinions of people that live outside of the

         19  City?

         20                 MR. CHARLES:  No, it's of our

         21  customers who are registered with us, and we will

         22  run a range of those who frequently use the service,

         23  to those who are infrequent users.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Here in the

         25  City?
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          2                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, those that are

          3  registered with the New York City Access-A-Ride

          4  system.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  In regards to

          6  the training of the drivers, how often do you--

          7                 MR. CHARLES:  Initially at hire, they

          8  have to have 80 hours of training before they're put

          9  into service.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Training with

         11  your company or just any type of training?

         12                 MR. CHARLES:  No, we have  --  the

         13  carrier has a prescribed training.  We've listed

         14  what needs to be covered in that training.  We do

         15  assist with our safety training, and we call them in

         16  periodically after that to give them refresher

         17  courses on safety issues with the driving.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  And what's the

         19  policy when a driver is reported for whatever

         20  reason?

         21                 I myself, had in the last three

         22  months, reported five different incidents that

         23  happened in my district to me personally with an

         24  Access-A-Ride driver.

         25                 What then is done after that?

                                                            52

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND MENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2                 MR. CHARLES:  We bring it to the

          3  attention of the carrier, the carrier interviews the

          4  driver or the dispatch to find out what the

          5  particulars were.  This driver will be monitored

          6  depending on the number of instances that we find

          7  they're involved with.  Most of them are represented

          8  by unions, so there is a disciplinary procedure, if

          9  it gets to that stage.             So each

         10  investigation is on its own, and we look at what the

         11  drivers record is.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         14  Member Palma.

         15                 The customer service satisfaction

         16  survey, what was the percentage of people satisfied

         17  four years ago in 2002?

         18                 MR. CHARLES:  I believe it was also

         19  around the 70 percent but I can get back to you on

         20  that.  I'm not too sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay so in other

         22  words, it's pretty level at  --  you stated that

         23  today it's at 79 percent.

         24                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So it's pretty
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          2  level, no dramatic increase or decrease?

          3                 MR. CHARLES:  Pretty level.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Right.

          5                 MR. CHARLES:  Okay, but I think we

          6  should be able to better than 79 percent.  Don't

          7  you?

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  We agree.  It's a

          9  challenging service we agree.  We're now trying to

         10  see how we can bring it above that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, so maybe when

         12  we hear from the advocates we will get some ideas on

         13  how to improve that percentage.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Can we put

         15  the survey on the Internet, on the Net?  Can you put

         16  the survey on the Net? That would answer Mr.

         17  Addabbo's question, the responses without names

         18  obviously.

         19                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, we have the

         20  general report of how the percentages for each

         21  category, we could see if we can do that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Put it on the

         23  Internet, thank you.

         24                 MR. CHARLES:  We'll see if we can do

         25  that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I can put it

          3  up for you.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well no, no, but I

          6  think the survey though, it's, I mean, it's not a

          7  survey that just  --  is it a survey that just

          8  welcomes people to respond on their own will if they

          9  want to?  Or is it a structured survey where you

         10  take a random sample?

         11                 MR. CHARLES:  We're taking a sample

         12  of customers in all five boroughs.  There's a

         13  certain number in each borough. Customers who

         14  frequently use the service to those who are

         15  infrequent users.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So if that's the

         17  case, then you can't really just put it up on- line

         18  or give out forms for people to fill out, right?

         19                 MR. CHARLES:  Generally we can say

         20  this was the response to the cleanliness of the

         21  vehicle.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Oh, I see.

         23                 MR. CHARLES:  We found a certain

         24  percentage that in most cases the vehicles are

         25  clean.  Things along those lines.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, I stand

          3  corrected.

          4                 Then my last question has to do with,

          5  is there any analysis that your agency conducts of

          6  who exactly is taking Access-A-Ride?  For example, a

          7  breakdown between people who use wheelchairs versus

          8  people who are vision impaired, you know, the kinds

          9  of disabilities that warrant this service?

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  We do have in our

         11  profile what equipment needs or what they would need

         12  for the service.  I have not seen a report that

         13  would give me a roll- up of percentages.

         14                 I can see if we can provide that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay because

         16  presumably, if you're able to determine that some of

         17  the riders needs could be accommodated through the

         18  use of sedans instead of the traditional

         19  Access-A-Ride vans, then there would be some kind of

         20  information that you would have that allowed you to

         21  make that determination.

         22                 MR. CHARLES:  Well, that we can

         23  definitely split ambulatory versus wheelchair users.

         24    That is definitely a split we can give.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, do you have a
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          2  rough percentage?

          3                 MR. CHARLES:  We usually say 25

          4  percent are wheelchair users, and 75 percent are

          5  ambulatory.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Oh, so 75 percent

          7  are ambulatory.

          8                 MR. CHARLES:  But that does not mean

          9  that the 25 percent  --  they may be more frequent

         10  users of the service, but of our registrant base,

         11  close to 75 percent are ambulatory.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Oh I see, so in

         13  other words, the people who are registered to use

         14  Access-A-Ride, 25 percent of them are wheelchair

         15  users, but they may use the service more frequently.

         16                 MR. CHARLES:  Correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Then is there any

         18  kind of breakdown about who rides Access-A-Ride, how

         19  much of the rider base is comprised of regular,

         20  periodic users, as opposed to occasional riders?

         21                 MR. CHARLES:  Generally we will have

         22  categories such as a percentage that takes six to

         23  ten trips, ten or more trips.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me make my

         25  question clearer because you talked about the
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          2  subscription riders.

          3                 MR. CHARLES:  Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  How many people are

          5  registered with subscription trips?

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  Right now, about 5,000

          7  are registered.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Five- thousand

          9  daily?  So that's 5,000 out of 13,000?

         10                 MR. CHARLES:  No, some travel seven

         11  days a week the same place, the same time.  Some

         12  travel six days a week, five days a week, and--

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, so 5,000

         14  people are on a subscription basis.

         15                 MR. CHARLES:  Right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And that's out of a

         17  total of how many customers?

         18                 MR. CHARLES:  Out of 95,000, but--

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay so, for the

         20  most part the service is still largely kind of an ad

         21  hoc  --  you call in for the ride?

         22                 MR. CHARLES:  Right.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Because of  --

         24  opposed to subscription basis?

         25                 MR. CHARLES:  Right now 25 percent of

                                                            58

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND MENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  our trips on peak are subscription of those that use

          3  it, and the rest are ad hoc, yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.  All right, I

          5  think that that does it for the questions from this

          6  Committee.

          7                 We understand that it is a complex

          8  and difficult service to provide but nonetheless,

          9  it's absolutely vital, and we will certainly hear

         10  from people who depend on this kind of service to

         11  the extent that we can improve upon the 79 percent.

         12  You know if I was going to be really hardlined about

         13  it, I think that's a C.

         14                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, we want to try

         16  to get into the B range, and to the extent that we

         17  can maybe lower the cost, the average cost, not so

         18  that we can cut back on service, so that we can

         19  provide even better service and prompter service,

         20  and narrow the window of arrival for the vans to get

         21  to their pickup locations.  That would be desirable

         22  because our understanding is that the national

         23  average for paratransit rides is still hovering

         24  around $25.00 to $30.00.

         25                 So, in New York City whereas we would
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          2  expect there to be some synergies because of the

          3  scale of this system, in fact, it's the average cost

          4  per trip is much higher than the national average.

          5                 So, thank you very much Mr. Charles.

          6                 MR. CHARLES:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We will look

          8  forward to working with you on this.

          9                 MR. CHARLES:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me invite

         11  Preston Niblack the Deputy Director of the

         12  Independent Budget Office, to be followed by Jessica

         13  Blum, a representative of Borough President, Marty

         14  Markowitz.

         15                 Then we'll hear immediately after

         16  these two people from the riders.

         17                 MR. NIBLACK:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman

         18  Liu, and Chairman Koppell.

         19                 I'm Preston Niblack, Deputy Director

         20  of the Independent Budget Office.  I am joined by

         21  Alan Treffeisen who's our Senior Analyst who covers

         22  transportation issues.

         23                 As Mr. Charles noted, last month Alan

         24  wrote and prepared an analysis that we released on

         25  the  --  a financial review, essentially, of
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          2  Access-A-Ride that was an update of a report that we

          3  did in 2000 on the same subject, and I'll just

          4  briefly review some of the findings with you.

          5                 As Mr. Charles noted, the cost we

          6  found have more than doubled between 2000 and 2005

          7  from $85 million annually to $190 million last year,

          8  with a big jump projected for the current year, to

          9  $240 million.

         10                 We also noted that the  --  this

         11  increase, this makes this one of the fastest growing

         12  programs, costs, in New York City Transit's budget,

         13  but the increase has been entirely due to the

         14  increase in ridership and the cost per passenger, as

         15  you noted, the cost per trip has stayed flat at

         16  about $40.00 per passenger, or about $55.00 per

         17  boarding.

         18                 The number of users registered for

         19  this service grew to, in 2005 it was about 92,000

         20  you heard today it was about 95,000 currently, about

         21  a 50 percent increase, but also the number of trips

         22  taken by each person has grown, so that the total

         23  number of trips taken has about doubled.

         24                 We also reviewed, sort of, how the

         25  program was funded.  The fares equivalent the subway
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          2  and bus fare, $2.00, and that covers obviously only

          3  a small fraction, about three- and- a half percent

          4  of the cost of the program.  The balance is made up

          5  by a combination of New York City Transit  --  a

          6  subsidy from New York City Transit's operating

          7  budget, and a piece of the dedicated tax revenues

          8  that go to the MTA, and by a contribution by the

          9  City.

         10                 The City's formula for its subsidy is

         11  essentially one- third of the operating cost after

         12  deducting fare revenues and the urban tax revenues,

         13  and administrative costs.  But because there is a

         14  cap of 20 percent annually in the growth, that means

         15  that the City's payment in 2005 was actually $30

         16  million but it would have been closer to $46 million

         17  if we'd actually adhered to the formula.

         18                 We are, just to sort of preview a

         19  little bit, some of the other work that we are

         20  doing, we're actually looking at the use of taxi

         21  vouchers as a compliment or an alternative for some

         22  users, and this is modeled on a system that's in

         23  place in a lot of other cities but there are some

         24   --  the ways the taxi and black car service is set

         25  up in New York is a little bit different than in
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          2  other cities, so this means that we have to, sort

          3  of, work on a little bit of how the logistics would

          4  work.

          5                 We've gotten some helpful information

          6  from paratransit, and we're expecting that we should

          7  have some results within a few weeks.  I hope I am

          8  not pushing Alan too hard, but within the next few

          9  weeks I hope to have some results and, of course, we

         10  will be happy to come back and talk to you about

         11  those at any time.

         12                 That's what I have to say about our

         13  recent financial review.

         14                 Thanks.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay so you have a

         16  recommendation that the service can be made better,

         17  and more cost effective, through the use of more of

         18  the sedan vouchers?

         19                 MR. NIBLACK:  Well, we haven't made a

         20  recommendation yet.  We're studying it, and we're

         21  looking at, sort of, how  --  I mean, it seems just

         22  on its face that if you could institute a voucher

         23  system similar to that in other cities, given that

         24  the average taxi ride is probably less than the

         25  $40.00 that the cost of a typical paratransit ride,
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          2  that you ought to be able to lower the per trip cost

          3  for at least some share of users. Exactly how many

          4  users might use that, and whether you might increase

          5  the number of registered users, if that was an

          6  option available, we have to, sort of, take a look

          7  at it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Was there any--

          9                 MR. NIBLACK:  Do you want to add

         10  anything?

         11                 MR. CHARLES:  Yes, I would just add

         12  that this is a compliment to  --  it wouldn't

         13  satisfy the requirements for ADA paratransit.  First

         14  of all,--

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  What is a

         16  complimentary?

         17                 MR. CHARLES:  Initially a taxi

         18  voucher system, in terms of fares, the maximum fare

         19  that can be charged is double the cash fare for

         20  regular transit.

         21                 So, this means a $4.00 maximum fare.

         22  It's quite likely that it  --  for some trips with

         23  taxi vouchers, the customer might be paying more

         24  than $4.00.  So, this would not meet the

         25  requirements of ADA paratransit.  But since the user
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          2  would also have the option of the ADA paratransit,

          3  that it would be permitted.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Did the IBO do or

          5  does the IBO intend to do some kind of an analysis

          6  of the average cost per ride, as compared to the

          7  national average?  Because there is a huge

          8  differential.

          9                 MR. NIBLACK:  Right, we didn't get

         10  the information necessary to do that when we did

         11  this last month.  I have that, sort of, on my list

         12  of things that we want to look at.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

         14                 MR. NIBLACK:  We're going to try to.

         15  I have  -- Alan has many other responsibilities at

         16  this point also, but we're going to look at that

         17  also.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Right.  Yes, I mean

         19  I think that would be helpful because it speaks to

         20  the very question of how exactly is paratransit

         21  being handled in this city, and are we really doing

         22  that much better a job, or is there something that

         23  can be done far better?

         24                 MR. NIBLACK:  Right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Council Member
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          2  Brewer.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I have a

          4  quick question.

          5                 Mr. Charles indicated that

          6  paratransit Access- A Ride is competing with the

          7  services and the funding of the Wall Street

          8  corporations.

          9                 How would that  --  would that

         10  interfere with the ability for somebody to be able

         11  to use your vouchers?  Is that taken into account?

         12                 MR. NIBLACK:  I think one the, sort

         13  of, voucher concept that I think that we're looking

         14  at, actually let me just made sure I don't

         15  misrepresent this.

         16                 The difference here would be that

         17  instead of relying on, kind of, a fixed pool of

         18  black cars for the disabled, you would essentially

         19  have a voucher system that would reimburse you for

         20  the difference between the base paratransit fare and

         21  the cost of the trip in any black car or taxi.

         22                 So, the idea is here that you would

         23  actually expand to the whole, or almost the whole,

         24  car fleet that's available, the for- hire car fleet

         25  that's available, so that would make it an easier to

                                                            66

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND MENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  use than schedule option.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

          4                 MR. NIBLACK:  But again, I mean, we

          5  have to look at the details of this very closely

          6  before we can say anything definitive.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, and do

          8  you have some projections as to how much more the

          9  system might increase?             Because I think

         10  that as you suggest, it's a very popular system but

         11  I think it's only going to increase.

         12                 MR. NIBLACK:  Yes, I mean that the

         13  piece where I think it's the hardest to know exactly

         14  how much.   I mean, I don't think anybody

         15  anticipated really the growth at the rate that it

         16  has been in the last few years, but when you look

         17  at, sort of, the census surveys of who's considered

         18  counted as disabled in the census, this is only a

         19  small fraction of the City's population.

         20                 So, that's going to be a tough one.

         21  I don't know how we'll be able to do that, we may

         22  just have to do parameter estimates to get some

         23  notion of it.

         24                 MR. CHARLES:  Right, and we'll

         25  finally only know when a trial is  --  when it's
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          2  done on a trial basis.

          3                 MR. NIBLACK:  Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right, and do

          5  you think the technology will be of assistance?

          6  Obviously Mr. Charles does, and I'm hopeful.

          7                 Do you think it will make a

          8  difference?

          9                 MR. NIBLACK:  I think that, I mean, I

         10  don't know enough about the operational details of

         11  the current system as it's currently working to

         12  really know.  I mean, obviously, they've looked at

         13  it, and they've decided that there are some routing

         14  and scheduling efficiencies that they can realize,

         15  and it will be  --  one would expect that they

         16  should be able to reduce the numbers of in- service

         17  hours per customer using those, so it should help.

         18  But by how much, we won't really know until we have

         19  seen the results.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Chairman, I

         21  know that Preston's supposed to talk about budget,

         22  but he knows about everything.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 MR. NIBLACK:  I know just enough to

         25  be dangerous.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          3  Member Brewer.

          4                 Thank you very much for joining us

          5  today, and we certainly look forward to your

          6  conducting additional analysis.

          7                 MR. NIBLACK:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let my invite

          9  Jessica Blum representing Brooklyn Borough

         10  President, Marty Markowitz, and note that we've been

         11  joined by Council Member Daniel Garodnick from

         12  Manhattan.

         13                 After Jessica Blum testifies, we

         14  would like to call up Jean Ryan, Pamela Bates, and

         15  Edith Prentiss.

         16                 MS. BLUM:  Thank you very much for

         17  the opportunity to testify today on behalf of

         18  Brooklyn Borough President, Marty Markowitz.

         19                 We know that when residents have

         20  transportation they can trust, there is no better

         21  place than Brooklyn and New York City to live, work

         22  and raise a family.

         23                 The role of Transit's Paratransit

         24  services is critical to serving the mobility needs

         25  of our residents.  Of the City's almost 94,000
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          2  paratransit users, Brooklyn accounts for 32,000.

          3  Access-A-Ride is important because Transit's Key

          4  Station Programs has not provided Brooklyn with its

          5  proportional share of stations to be improved, and

          6  despite all the improvements made to Transit's bus

          7  services, including making the service fleet fully

          8  accessible, the elderly and people with disabilities

          9  are a more difficult market to serve, which is why

         10  the Americans with Disabilities Act provided for

         11  paratransit services.

         12                 To check on Access-A-Ride

         13  performance, my office conducted a survey

         14  distributing forms to over 150 senior centers and

         15  organizations, as well as numerous agencies and

         16  advocacy organizations for people with disabilities.

         17    That effort found that the number one problem with

         18  Access-A-Ride is lateness of vehicles.  Under the

         19  ADA criteria, paratransit vehicles are considered on

         20  time when the customer is picked up five minutes

         21  before until 25 minutes after the scheduled time.

         22  But when you are 80 years old, waiting in the rain

         23  or the sweltering heat with a walker, or you're on

         24  your way to an important meeting for work, there's

         25  no difference when the vehicle is 25 minutes behind
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          2  schedule or two hours late.

          3                 Paratransit officials have informed

          4  my office, as Mr. Charles had said today, that they

          5  are working on improving the overall service, and I

          6  had actually sat down with Mr. Charles and went over

          7  the survey with him in May of this year.

          8                 So, while constituents have seen

          9  improvements, there are still numerous complaints

         10  being logged into my office regarding Access-A-Ride.

         11    Customer service agents have been helpful, and for

         12  the most part, timely in responding to the office,

         13  and I thank them for this.

         14                 However, Access-A-Ride problems need

         15  to be addressed at large, not on a case by case

         16  basis.

         17                 Many calls I receive are from

         18  applicants that are denied intra- borough service.

         19  Evaluators determine that riders can take a bus to

         20  get to where they need to go within Brooklyn. Have

         21  you ever looked at a Brooklyn bus map?  Residents of

         22  Bergen Beach need to take up to three buses or more

         23  in order to get to a doctor in Borough Park.

         24  Besides the fact that many bus stops do not have

         25  shelters, let alone seating, a ride by car that is
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          2  20 minutes can take up to almost two hours by bus.

          3                 So in closing, we just want to state

          4  that we want to make sure that we ensure that

          5  seniors and people with disabilities have reliable

          6  and safe transportation because it is a vital

          7  component to New York City life.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 Oh excuse me, we have a question for

         12  you from --              CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Yes I

         13  want to understand this, are you saying that people

         14  are denied the right to use the Access-A-Ride if you

         15  could  --  within Brooklyn, is that what the idea

         16  is?

         17                 MS. BLUM:  Yes, there's a difference

         18  between inter- borough and intra- borough.  So where

         19  residents in Brooklyn are allowed to go into

         20  Manhattan or to Queens--

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Right.

         22                 MS. BLUM: -- they're not allowed to

         23  go to the doctor, or to go to anything within the

         24  borough that they reside in.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  That's the
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          2  current rule?

          3                 MS. BLUM:  It depends on some  --

          4  the evaluator. They have different criteria's.  Then

          5  there's also that some people are only allowed

          6  Access-A-Ride during the winter months.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  I see.  So you

          8  say there's currently a rule that says that if you

          9  go within Brooklyn, you have to take a bus?  Is that

         10  what you're saying?

         11                 MS. BLUM:  It depends on what

         12  Access-A-Ride determines you're eligibility for.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Well you're

         14  saying it depends on the person?

         15                 MS. BLUM:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So there are

         17  different criteria for different people?

         18                 MS. BLUM:  Right, they're saying some

         19  people they say that they may not be able to take

         20  the subway, but they could take a bus, and so--

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  And then they

         22  deny the service?

         23                 MS. BLUM:  Then they're only allowed

         24  to go out of their own borough that they live in.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Well, we have
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          2  to look into  --  I wasn't aware of that.  We'll

          3  have to look into that further.

          4                 MS. BLUM:  Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank you.

          6                 MS. BLUM:  Okay, you're welcome.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          8                 We've been joined by Council Member

          9  Darlene Mealy from Brooklyn as well.

         10                 Let me call up our next panel Pamela

         11  Bates, Jean Ryan and Edith Prentiss, to be followed

         12  by Michael Harris, Linda Ostreicher, and Harvey

         13  Pacht.

         14                 So who's going first?

         15                 MS. PRENTISS:  I am.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That's what I

         17  figured.  Go ahead Edith.

         18                 MS. PRENTISS:  Okay, I'd like to

         19  state first that although I do have an Access-A-Ride

         20  card and full eligibility, I very rarely use

         21  Access-A-Ride for the simple reason of all the

         22  complaints we hear.

         23                 I personally use it primarily when we

         24  have an ADA compliance meeting at 2 Broadway, in the

         25  evening, or other locals where it's basically going
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          2  to be dangerous or unknown territory.             So

          3  , Lower Manhattan because of the construction and

          4  the lack of curb cutting makes it a little dangerous

          5  to wheel, particularly in the dark.  Therefore, I

          6  don't use it all that much.

          7                 I would like to say though that in

          8  preparing comments for this, I did speak with other

          9  Access-A-Ride users and I will be briefly notating a

         10  number of problems.

         11                 First, I would like to say that I

         12  really wish Access-A-Ride had more availability for

         13  emergency services. Several weeks ago my chair died.

         14    There I am on 181st Street in Washington Heights,

         15  and my chair is dead.  I called A Ride for All,

         16  knowing A Ride for All.  I don't have every

         17  accessible for- hire vehicle company in my cell

         18  phone.  Since they are now owned by Carmel, two

         19  hours later they call me back and they transported

         20  my seven miles to Penn Station at the cost of

         21  $58.00.  Now sticker shock being what it is, I

         22  certainly would have preferred to do that by

         23  Access-A-Ride for $2.00.

         24                 A number of the problems that people

         25  have reported are the scheduling.  I guess the
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          2  question comes down to why can the large black cars

          3  and livery services manage to provide services on a

          4  timely basis?  We don't see everyone at Goldman

          5  Sachs and Conde Nast standing outside in the pouring

          6  rain waiting for black cars to turn up to transport

          7  them.  Why is Access- A Ride so problematic?

          8                 Pickup locations, there seems to

          9  still remain a problem despite the new mapping and

         10  reservation systems.  For example, one member has

         11  told us that when they call to go to Wheelchair

         12  Medic which is in Fort Totten, it's at the United

         13  Spinal facility, it's not on the map.  They give

         14  them the address, it's not on the map.  They tell

         15  them Fort Totten, they can't find Fort Totten on a

         16  map of Queens.  There's a problem.

         17                 Last Thursday when we left the

         18  comptroller's event here at approximately 9 p.m.,

         19  although the Access-A-Ride pickups were on the Park

         20  Row side, I passed a vehicle on Broadway, and as I'm

         21  wheeling out the driver says, "are you my pickup?"

         22  I go, "you know the pickup is on Park Row."  He

         23  goes, "oh, where am I?" Broadway.  He goes, "but

         24  this is City Hall."  So, there remain problems with

         25  that.
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          2                 The zone system, we hear there's the

          3  zone system is being used.  But, if so, why did it

          4  take that same individual four hours from Fort

          5  Totten to Bethune Street?  That's a little

          6  excessive.

          7                 Denial rates, the denial rate is

          8  great, it's zero percent.  But if they offer a

          9  voucher, and the individual can't use the voucher,

         10  they're in a chair and they're offered a black car.

         11  How does that help anyone?  In the statistics it

         12  says a voucher was offered, it doesn't say the trip

         13  is completed.  We question those statistics.

         14                 Temporary eligibility as was

         15  mentioned by Jessica, the eligibility remains

         16  problematic for people who are determined to be

         17  temporary eligible because there often is a lag in

         18  the re application process, leaving them un-served.

         19  Also, when there are specific events, such as when

         20  there was the transit strike, they offered expedited

         21  eligibility for individuals who would have been

         22  using the franchise buses, but it didn't really

         23  work.  But at least they tried.

         24                 The late cancellation system, you

         25  still have to, despite the FTA regulations, if you
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          2  cancel later than 5 p.m. The day before you trip,

          3  it's considered a late cancellation, and you're open

          4  to being penalized.

          5                 Complaints, why is it if you make a

          6  complaint by the Internet, you get a complaint

          7  number, but if you make a complaint by a phone call,

          8  you can't get a complaint number?  We know the MTA

          9  and therefore, Access-A-Ride do not come under the

         10  purview of 311 since it is a state agency.  Fine,

         11  but why aren't complaint numbers logged?  I

         12  sincerely doubt when you call the complaint line

         13  they're writing it down in a steno pad.  They must

         14  be entering it into a computer, why can't a

         15  complaint be generated right then and there with a

         16  number?

         17                 Customer service, the number is not

         18  widely publicized, and their main job is really

         19  outreach.

         20                 The carrier no show taxi contracts,

         21  the problem remains, and similar to the numbers

         22  being spit out by the IBO, the fact of the matter

         23  is, how many vehicles are held by taxis or for- hire

         24  vehicles that are, in fact, wheelchair accessible?

         25  Very few.  We all are waiting for standard cabs, but
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          2  they're not here now, nor are the yellow cabs on the

          3  street.  We hear of many complaints that people are

          4  left stranded, waiting for hours, maybe offered a

          5  voucher, cannot use it because they don't have the

          6  money.

          7                 Visually impaired riders continue to

          8  complain that the drivers do not say, "I'm here for

          9  so and so."  How are they supposed to know there's

         10  an Access-A-Ride vehicle even sitting there?

         11                 Re- pickups, if you're not available

         12  at the time of your pickup, it can still be between

         13  90 minutes to two hours waiting for an additional

         14  pickup because as they said, you have to be fit into

         15  the schedule somewhere else, and that has not

         16  changed in years.

         17                 Late pickup wait time, when you call

         18  in the mantra you hear seems to remain ten minutes,

         19  ten minutes, ten minutes. Where is GPS, when is it

         20  coming?  Is it really going to help anything?  I

         21  think it's very frustrating for the individuals who

         22  have no choice but to use Access-A-Ride.  It's also

         23  not fair that there is a system that we know doesn't

         24  work, and that we should be able to use.

         25                 Thank you.

                                                            79

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND MENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Edith.

          3                 Jean, Pamela?

          4                 MS. BATES:  Good morning everybody.

          5                 The think that I want to address

          6  mainly, I am an Access-A-Ride user.  I use

          7  Access-A-Ride from between one to four times a week,

          8  going to different functions but basically, I want

          9  to represent the people that we represent as

         10  activists of Upper Manhattan, which includes Harlem

         11  and Washington Heights, and Inwood.

         12                 Basically, the problem that we have

         13  is that the drivers seem to be very reluctant to get

         14  out of their cars, now that as Tom Charles said, we

         15  have cell phones, only 30 percent that's true, but

         16  still if we don't have cell phones  --  the people

         17  that don't have cell phones, why is it that they

         18  have to wait outside, we're talking about seniors

         19  and people with disabilities, different ailments,

         20  why is it that they have to wait outside in

         21  inclement weather?

         22                 Some people have asthma, multiple

         23  sclerosis, they have mobility impairments, they're

         24  blind or deaf.  They have different problems with

         25  locating the Access-A-Ride vans.
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          2                 When you call up, we're talking about

          3  the five minutes before pickup time that we have to

          4  wait up until 25 to 30 minutes afterwards, and a lot

          5  of times it is more than that. We're talking about

          6  rain, snow, sun which affects a lot of disabilities,

          7  and we have to wait outside because the drivers are

          8  very reluctant to come into the building, or to call

          9  on the cell phones numbers that they do have listed

         10  on their manifests, and we want to know why that

         11  can't be put in as a rule, that you have to go in

         12  and look for the client, patient, whichever you want

         13  to call it, customer.

         14                 I think it's very unsensitive to

         15  expect people that are older, and people that are

         16  disabled with all of these ailments to wait outside

         17  in inclement weather.

         18                 The other thing that I wanted to

         19  address are some of the people in these areas have

         20  subscriptions, and these subscriptions are for work,

         21  dialysis, school, chemotherapy, we don't get a

         22  subscription to go shopping at the same time every

         23  week.  These are important things that have to be

         24  met.  There's a time frame that you have to be

         25  there, you have to be there at 9 o'clock in the
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          2  morning.  Some people have to be there at 6 o'clock

          3  in the morning, and they have had to wait in the

          4  same inclement weather, outside, waiting for the

          5  drivers to come for over 40 minutes, sometimes more

          6  than an hour, and when you call, if you do have a

          7  public phone near, or a cell phone, now they have

          8  improved to the point where you can call and find

          9  out where your van is.  That's one of the

         10  improvements that they have. They have sensitivity

         11  training, I think a lot more for the drivers,

         12  they're more polite but that doesn't help when

         13  you're standing outside and you're waiting and

         14  you're shivering, and you're trying to call and find

         15  out where your van is, and as Edith said, ten

         16  minutes, ten minutes, ten minutes, and you're still

         17  waiting.

         18                 I think there should be some kind of

         19  thing in the training manual that the drivers do

         20  have to get down out of that van.  I know they don't

         21  want to get wet either, but they're healthier then

         22  we are, and I think they should be able to come into

         23  the building and find out exactly where the person

         24  is, come in and help them out, especially when it's

         25  snowing, you have drifts out there, you have people

                                                            82

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND MENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  with wheelchairs and walkers and crutches.  I think

          3  they need to be able to get into the building and

          4  help people come out.

          5                 That's basically what I have to

          6  complain about. That's most of the complaints that

          7  we get from our different groups, and we want to

          8  have a little bit more help from the drivers.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         10                 Jean, go ahead.

         11                 MS. RYAN:  Hello, I am Jean Ryan.

         12  I'm the Second VP for Public Affairs of Disabled In

         13  Action, and I'm an Access- A Ride activist and

         14  rider.  I have been a member of Access-A-Ride

         15  advisory committees since 2000.  Access-A-Ride has

         16  definitely improved since 1994 when I first applied

         17  and could never get a ride.

         18                 Before I say what I was originally

         19  going to say, I just wanted to respond to one thing

         20  that Tom Charles said about getting the Crown Vic's.

         21    We routinely get  --  tried to be picked up in a

         22  Crown Vic, and we don't get a ride then when a Crown

         23  Vic comes for us.  I have a friend in Queens who  --

         24    a Crown Vic comes for her regularly, and when it

         25  does, then she doesn't get a ride.
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          2                 We are told that there is a zero

          3  denial rate.  One hundred percent of rides requested

          4  are scheduled.  That's true, but are they provided?

          5  No.  So, in reality, there is not a zero denial

          6  rate.  It is probably more like a six percent denial

          7  rate. What contributes?  Pickups so late that a

          8  person doesn't get picked up at all to go to a

          9  doctor's appointment, a funeral, a lunch, a class,

         10  to work, to run an errand, in short, anything that

         11  any of us do.  Pickups that are late because of vans

         12  that are poorly maintained, or pickups that are late

         13  because of drivers who don't know where they are

         14  going, or pickups that are scheduled in zig- zag

         15  fashion that are impossible for the driver to make

         16  the schedule.  Or a voucher car that never shows up

         17  when you call, they say that they have no cars

         18  available.  Or a taxi authorization but you have no

         19  money to lay out for a month.  Or you can't get a

         20  taxi or car service, or your chair won't fit into

         21  one.  Or Access-A-Ride sends a car, and you have a

         22  wheelchair. This is our reality folks.  Being left

         23  on the curb, and this is another reason why we need

         24  all taxis and many, if not all, car services to be

         25  wheelchair accessible.  We need options.
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          2                 Why is Access-A-Ride continuing for

          3  years to use unreliable car services for vouchers

          4  when people can not reliably be picked up by them?

          5  When we have asked them about this, they say that

          6  they are "learning about car services."  On our

          7  backs. I think they have learned enough, and should

          8  cancel the contracts because they are not providing

          9  the services they contracted for, and get new

         10  contracts with teeth in them.  They don't have to

         11  just let them run out to the end.  I mean, why give

         12  us vouchers when they don't mean anything?  People

         13  every time at our meetings were saying  --  the

         14  people who are ambulatory that is, I can't use a

         15  voucher, they're saying, "we call the vouchers, they

         16  say they don't have any rides available."  Or we

         17  call and they say they're going to come and they

         18  never show up, or they show up hours and hours

         19  later.  Why is this acceptable?  And the FTA, in

         20  their report that they did a couple of years ago

         21  that came out, they said that 20 percent of the

         22  vouchers and the taxi authorizations were used.

         23  Only 20 percent.  That means that  -- and taxi

         24  authorizations and vouchers are used when the vans

         25  don't show up, and they're used for  --  to keep the
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          2  denial rate at zero.

          3                 So, that means if they're not being

          4  used, that means that we're not taking those rides,

          5  we're not getting those rides.  We're not going some

          6  place that we need to get to.  Why not?  Because if

          7  we're not taking the voucher it is because the car

          8  won't come to us.  Why?  Because they're hiring  --

          9  they have a contract with an unreliable voucher

         10  service.  Now why is this persisting on happening?

         11  I'd really like to know that, and I'm sure you would

         12  too.

         13                 Access-A-Ride still has an archaic

         14  system of charging us a late cancellation if we

         15  cancel our ride any time after 5 p.m. The day before

         16  our scheduled ride.  Now just think about it, I mean

         17  any time somebody calls you, your doctor appointment

         18  is changed, your friend calls, "oh, I've got to

         19  cancel our luncheon date or our meeting tomorrow,

         20  our meeting time was changed from  --  we can't meet

         21  at 11, we've got to meet at one or something."  It's

         22  changed, any time you've got to change something for

         23  tomorrow or tonight, or anything like that, well

         24  then, our Access-A-Ride time would have to change,

         25  and then we have to change our Access-A-Ride time
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          2  and it's a late cancellation.  We think a reasonable

          3  alternative would be two hours before our scheduled

          4  ride.  That would reflect the reality of modern

          5  living.  Who doesn't get a call from a friend or a

          6  doctor or someone about a meeting that the event has

          7  been changed or cancelled at the last minute?   Or

          8  the night before?  Other big paratransit systems

          9  have adapted to this, and New York City can too.  It

         10  would reduce our stress considerable.  We don't call

         11  it Stress- A- Ride for nothing, but our requests

         12  have fallen on deaf ears.  The FTA would like to see

         13  this too from New York City Transit.

         14                 No matter how many promises we've

         15  heard over the years, Access-A-Ride seems to be

         16  unable to pick us up if there is a problem with a

         17  trip.  This problem is getting worse, not better.

         18  We are routinely told that it will be at least

         19  another hour and a half more tacked on to the

         20  already 30 to 45 minute wait we've already waiting

         21  until a van can arrive.  Why can't they solve this

         22  problem?  It's extremely exhausting and

         23  demoralizing.  They tell us they have instructed

         24  transit control to look for other solutions, but in

         25  reality we hear the same old thing.
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          2                 It is so demoralizing, we don't have

          3  other options.  We can't just hop on the subway and

          4  get wherever it is we have to go.

          5                 As the recent IBO report suggested,

          6  the almost 100,000 current Access-A-Ride subscribers

          7  is really a drop in the bucket of the numbers of

          8  people who could be using Access-A-Ride.           How

          9  big can the system get before it reaches a tipping

         10  point for the reservation and scheduling system?  I

         11  suggest that we move to a voucher system like

         12  Chicago has, where people purchase vouchers for

         13  accessible car services and cabs. Of course, that

         14  presupposes we have accessible car services and

         15  cabs, and bypass the reservation scheduling van

         16  paratransit system as much as possible.  It could

         17  end up saving tax payers a great deal of money, and

         18  it would be convenient for the users. Why do we need

         19  to have schedulers, reservationists, administrators,

         20  all this umbrella of people for every single ride

         21  that we're going to take?  It just seems like there

         22  should be a simpler way to do it, especially for

         23  people who are only going six blocks to go play

         24  bingo or go to their hairdresser, or their senior

         25  citizen center, or something like that, especially
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          2  on a regular basis.

          3                 We need to think of innovative

          4  solutions, and I remember that we had asked Howard

          5  India (phonetic) a couple of years ago how many

          6  users would it take before the system gets maxed

          7  out, and he told us, but I can't find it in my notes

          8  what the answer was.

          9                 There's low moral amongst drivers for

         10  their pay and benefits, and for their working

         11  conditions.  The vans are uncomfortable for

         12  passengers and for drivers.  Disable In Action feels

         13  very strongly that the MTA should take over the

         14  whole system like they did the private franchise

         15  buses, and abandon the private carrier system.  This

         16  would streamline the system, improve driver moral,

         17  improve maintenance, and most important improve

         18  accountability.

         19                 You were talking about the vans and

         20  how the vans are turned over every seven years, yes,

         21  right.  There is a number 49 bus out there, number

         22  49, now we're up to 3,700 vans, the vans are

         23  numbered 3,700, but there is a number 49 van still

         24  out there running around picking up people.  It's

         25  been refurbished, however, very recently in a heavy
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          2  rainstorm, it has comfortable seats, but the

          3  windshield wipers didn't work.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Jean.

          5                 MR. RYAN:  Well, I'm just telling you

          6  there's some things wrong with this system.

          7                 Now, carriers are not picking up

          8  people and they're calling it a system no show when

          9  it's really a carrier no show, but no one checks up

         10  on them.  Drivers and dispatchers call people a no

         11  show by not even going to pick them up.

         12                 Recently a driver from MV told me

         13  that other drivers and dispatchers in MV were using

         14  drugs in hopes that DOT wouldn't catch them.  This

         15  kind of behavior is an example of low moral.

         16                 We need innovation and vision in

         17  Access-A-Ride. It can't be the stepchild of the bus

         18  department with a new vice president appointed every

         19  three years.  The babyboomers are becoming seniors,

         20  and will be becoming disabled in ever increasing

         21  numbers.  We have to plan for their future too, not

         22  just do crisis management as more and more people

         23  become eligible for Access-A-Ride.  So many people

         24  would not have to ride Access-A-Ride if the buses

         25  ran more hours and days, if the taxis and car
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          2  services were wheelchair accessible, if the subways

          3  and subway stations were more accessible, and the

          4  elevators were more reliable, and if there were more

          5  pedestrian ramps so we could get around this City.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. But now I

          8  want to point out, Pamela, you said that there have

          9  been some changes for the better in Access-A-Ride

         10  the last couple of years.

         11                 MR. BATES:  Yes, as far as the

         12  sensitivity training, as far as the drivers, there

         13  have been some changes with  --  as far as going out

         14  of your way, I have left Mt. Sinai Hospital on 102nd

         15  Street and had to go through the Bronx and come back

         16  down to my house on 123rd Street.  That still goes

         17  on.  I mean, there are still glitches.  I've had to

         18  leave 149th Street and go through CoOp City to come

         19  back down to Tremont Avenue. Some of these things

         20  still happen.  I'm told that the drivers have the

         21  discretion as their tool, that they can use their

         22  discretion, they don't have to stick specifically to

         23  the schedule, but some of the drivers are so afraid

         24  of loosing their jobs or whatever their problem is

         25  that they go through that schedule like it's the
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          2  Bible.

          3                 So, these are the things that we have

          4  to go through, so there are still some scheduling

          5  glitches but it's better than it was before, and

          6  like I said there should still be some way for

          7  people to be able to get to the van without standing

          8  outside in bad weather.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, and to be

         10  fair, I think Access-A-Ride under Federal law,

         11  that's supposed to be for people who can't use buses

         12  and subways.  It's really  --  paratransit is not,

         13  it's not a car service.

         14                 MS. PRENTISS:  Excuse me.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

         16                 MS. PRENTISS:  Our eligibility is

         17  based upon our ability to travel multiple things.

         18                 So, there are some of us who are

         19  eligible for inclement weather.  Some of us are

         20  eligible for inter- borough. It depends on one's

         21  individual--

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, is there

         23  actually a category that says,`eligible for

         24  inclement weather travel'?

         25                 MS. PRENTISS:  Yes, yes, until this
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          2  past  --  I was only eligible for inter- borough

          3  travel, and inclement weather.  That was my sole

          4  eligibility, which was fine.

          5                 Now I'm fully eligible, although I

          6  almost never use it because, as much as possible, I

          7  do try to use  --  but yes, if there is six inches-

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You take the

          9  subways?

         10                 MS. PRENTISS:  I take the subways.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You just have to --

         12                 MS. PRENTISS:  But if there's six

         13  inches of snow, I can't wheel that half mile to get

         14  me to the subway, particularly when the MTA is the

         15  worst offender of clearing the sidewalks to get to

         16  the subway.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

         18                 MS. PRENTISS:  I would like to say

         19  they also, I'm sorry Gale, one second.

         20                 Since the new system came in, they

         21  did add Fort George Hill.  Fort George Hill wasn't

         22  in their mapping system. You know, it's a street.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

         24                 Council Member Brewer has a question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  My question
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          2  is, and I know Pam might know, what is the status of

          3  information coming through the Paratransit Advisory

          4  Council, and is that a place where you can bring

          5  some of these issues, and do they get resolved?

          6                 Whoever wants to answer.

          7                 MS. RYAN:  Well, we keep going over

          8  the same things, and some of them don't get

          9  resolved, like late cancellation.  Some do like we

         10  brought up the one and two day  -- we did get them

         11  to switch to the one and two day reservation period.

         12    We spoke, and they listened.  They went from  --

         13  it was a negotiation.  It was one to four before,

         14  and one would never work with a wheelchair user.

         15  You could never get a ride if you were a wheelchair

         16  user if you called the day before, especially after

         17  12.  The majority of people were calling four days

         18  before at seven in the morning, but then they were

         19  doing a lot of cancellations.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So that was a

         21  discussion that seemed to have some kind of

         22  response?

         23                 MS. RYAN:  Right, because it was

         24  inconvenient for the Transit Authority because when

         25  you make a reservation four days before, naturally
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          2  things change in your life, and you would be

          3  cancelling and renegotiating rides.

          4                 So, they changed that and that worked

          5  out well to everybody's satisfaction, and they also,

          6  with our input, changed it when we had to wait five

          7  minutes before  --  be out there five minutes

          8  before, and the van could take off right at the

          9  pickup time  --  we had to be out there five

         10  minutes, and that was extremely confusing and a lot

         11  of people were left and so now we have to be out

         12  there at our pickup time, and the van can leave five

         13  minutes after.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Got it.

         15                 MS. RYAN:  That works really well.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, thanks.

         17                 Pam, do you want to add anything?

         18                 MS. BATES:  No, well she basically

         19  said the main things, and they have added

         20  sensitivity training to the drivers so that they're

         21  more receptive to people coming on, blind people

         22  with their pets and everything, well not their pets,

         23  their service dogs, excuse me.  But they are family

         24  members really. That's been improved, and the way

         25  they treat  --  they will get out and help people a
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          2  little bit more, once they're on the sidewalk.  That

          3  has nothing to do with them waiting out there for a

          4  half hour to an hour, and the other thing that they

          5  have is that when they  --  they have the floaters,

          6  now the floaters are out there, I haven't run into

          7  one.  Usually if you have to cancel your ride from

          8  the doctors appointment, you have to wait an hour to

          9  two hours or more for them to find another ride for

         10  you.  So, that's a little bit on the down side.  But

         11  the floaters are out there, and sometimes you will

         12  get one I hear.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  But you

         14  haven't.

         15                 MR. BATES:  No, I haven't so far.

         16                 MS. RYAN:  I heard they don't have

         17  floaters.  I mean, they don't have enough vans to

         18  have floaters.  That's what we've been told.

         19                 MS. BATES:  Right, we've been told

         20  that all of the vans are scheduled, and that in

         21  effect, the only way there would be a floater would

         22  be if you have a van that's entire manifest had been

         23  cancelled, which is highly unlikely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  You're much

         25  more expert on this system than I am, but I was
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          2  interested in and actually quite surprised to learn

          3  that 75 percent of the users are what they call

          4  ambulatory.  It seems to me that there are direct,

          5  obviously, issues that relate to having rides for

          6  people who are in a wheelchair, as you are, that are

          7  different than having rides for people who may be

          8  elderly, be hard for them to get into the subway if

          9  there's no elevator, even hard to get on a bus, even

         10  though it's less steps.

         11                 Would it make sense to divide the

         12  system between people who are ambulatory, if you

         13  will, and people who need a specialized vehicle?

         14                 MS. BATES:  Historically,

         15  Access-A-Ride did use sedans  -- a lot of sedans,

         16  and the issue became that the bulk of their service

         17  was organized to sedans, and it was problematic for

         18  people who needed accessible, to have accessible.

         19                 Also, many individuals who have

         20  problems walking, who are ambulatory, have

         21  difficulty getting into cars.  It's that step over

         22  the sill, et cetera, so it becomes a self-

         23  fulfilling prophesy that you use car service, and

         24  they actually had their own vehicles, they

         25  historically went to the white Access-A-Ride
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          2  vehicles, and then decanted all trips into vans, and

          3  now we're going back.  It' sort of re- inventing the

          4  wheel, and we're seeing that by utilizing car

          5  service and sedans, you are isolating individuals

          6  who can't utilize that further, and that becomes

          7  problematic.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Of course,

          9  those problems would be alleviated if we had a fleet

         10  of vans.

         11                 MS. BATES:  Had an accessible fleet.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  A fleet of the

         13  black cars, if you will, that were also accessible

         14  for people with restrictions.

         15                 MS. BATES:  I mean to be perfectly

         16  honest, if we had accessible taxis, a lot of us

         17  would not be using A Ride for All, I'm sorry I mean

         18  Access- A- Ride.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  As long as

         20  there was a subsidy.

         21                 MS. BATES:  People use Access-A-Ride

         22  who could afford car service, if it were available.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Well, that was

         24  what I was trying to explore, yes.

         25                 MS. BATES:  That's very clear, that's
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          2  very clear. People do, and are willing to  --  if

          3  you can get a trip, I mean I'm not going to waste

          4  four hours of my time for getting a trip for $2.00.

          5  It's just  --  there are people who do not have the

          6  financial flexibility  --  the Chicago system

          7  subsidizes it. Hey, if we're going to have that,

          8  that would be really great. I'll take it, but I'm

          9  not going to use Access-A-Ride simply to save money.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Is it your

         11  impression that the Chicago system works better?

         12                 MS. BATES:  It certainly works better

         13  than what we have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Yes?  Well,

         15  we'll have to look at that.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 Let us call up the next panel,

         20  Michael Harris, Linda Ostreicher, Harvey Pacht, and

         21  we'll also call up Joseph Perez from the same

         22  organization.

         23                 Following them we will hear from Pat

         24  Dolan, Adele Bender who I think may have left her

         25  written testimony.  Okay, so following this panel
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          2  we'll hear from Pat Dolan, Reed Craig, Melissa

          3  Rosado, and Sharon Bewry.

          4                 Go ahead when you're ready, Michael,

          5  and just pull it up closer if you wouldn't mind.

          6                 MR. HARRIS:  Thank you Council Member

          7  Liu.

          8                 First of all, I want to thank Council

          9  Member Jackson for having the Education hearing run

         10  over because that actually gave people coming here

         11  by Access-A-Ride a chance to be here somewhat on

         12  time, given the lateness of Access-A-Ride.  So, if

         13  you could please relay my gratitude to Council

         14  Member Jackson for that, I'd appreciate it.

         15                 As the Campaign Coordinator for the

         16  Disabled Riders Coalition, the only tri- state area

         17  advocacy organization focused solely on disability

         18  issues in transportation, we receive between 400 and

         19  600 complaints a week.  Of those complaints,

         20  approximately half of them are regarding New York

         21  City's Access A- Ride program.  Now, think about

         22  that for a minute.  We're a tri- state organization

         23  getting 600 complaints a week, half of them about a

         24  program which only operates within the five boroughs

         25  of the City of New York, which means approximately
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          2  250 complaints per week.  Those complaints have

          3  surged as high as 600 a week, solely on

          4  Access-A-Ride.

          5                 Now, CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL actually has

          6  the unique situation of residing in an area where

          7  you'll see the most Access-A-Ride vehicles because I

          8  don't know whether you know this or not, but there

          9  is a place on the Riverdale/Yonkers border where

         10  there's a layover zone between Westchester

         11  Paratransit and New York City Paratransit because

         12  New York City Paratransit vans, despite the fact

         13  that bus service crosses the county line into

         14  Westchester both on the New York City bus service

         15  side, and on the Westchester bus service side,

         16  cannot cross the county line. So, they leave you off

         17  at a Key Food, and have you walk across the county

         18  line on the Yonkers/Riverdale border, right by the

         19  post office there, and you walk across the county

         20  line to transfer vehicles, despite the fact that if

         21  you could do this directly by bus. So you actually

         22  have the unique situation of having the most

         23  Access-A-Ride vehicles in the city being in your

         24  district.

         25                 But coming back to some of the
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          2  various complaints that we received.  From ranging

          3  from the 93- year- old woman who was told that she

          4  could only use Access-A-Ride if it was snowing out,

          5  and for trips going between boroughs but could not

          6  use it for trips within Brooklyn, ranging to the

          7  person who had a trip from 34th Street, Penn

          8  Station, to 125th Street and got a five borough,

          9  unguided tour that took her six hours.  These are

         10  just a few of the many complaints that we receive.

         11                 Now, a lot of people come up to me

         12  and ask me, "Michael, why don't you use Access- A-

         13  Ride?"  My answer is, "because I know too much about

         14  it."

         15                 It's really sad but the fact of the

         16  matter is that when you have a doctors appointment,

         17  or you have to get to work, or even if it's just

         18  going to a movie, you need to be someplace at a

         19  certain time, and you have to be there at that time.

         20  Access-A-Ride is simply not reliable enough for that

         21  to happen. It's sad but people have given up on the

         22  program, myself included.

         23                 Last week, I took a trip out to

         24  Middle Village, Queens, by subway.  It was about a

         25  three- and- a- half hour trip by subway, but I had
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          2  no other choice because I've given up on using

          3  Access-A-Ride because of all the problems and

          4  complaints that we receive about it.

          5                 It's a program in desperate need of

          6  reform.  It's a program that needs to be fixed and

          7  made more reliable, so that we don't get calls at 3

          8  o'clock in the morning, "I'm stranded in the middle

          9  of the South Bronx, my Access-A-Ride pickup is not

         10  showing up.  Can you give me subway directions, or

         11  bus directions home?"  I shouldn't have to be woken

         12  up at 3 o'clock in the morning, approximately once

         13  every other week with phone calls like that.

         14                 So, I would urge this committee to

         15  conduct serious investigations into Access- A-

         16  Ride's actions, and it's unfortunate that

         17  CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL is now CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL, and

         18  not Assembly Member Koppell because I would ask that

         19  he would introduce legislation in the Assembly to

         20  rename Access- A- Ride, Stress- A- Ride because

         21  that's what we all call it because that's what it

         22  is.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 If you have any questions, I'll be

         25  more than happy to answer them.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Why don't we wait

          3  until after Ms. Ostreicher?

          4                 MR. HARRIS:  Yes.

          5                 MS. OSTREICHER:  Okay, can you hear

          6  me now?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

          8                 MS. OSTREICHER:  My name is Linda

          9  Ostreicher, and I'm  from the Center for

         10  Independence of the Disabled of New York, otherwise

         11  known as CIDNY, and I'm going t deviate from my

         12  notes for a moment just to clarify a little bit

         13  about the kinds of disabilities that people might

         14  have that could mean that they are ambulatory, and

         15  yet they need to take paratransit.

         16                 One of the things you have to think

         17  of is that when you're getting ready to go on the

         18  subway or the bus, you have to be prepared for other

         19  riders for getting trampled, pushed, having somebody

         20  step on your feet, not being able to get a seat,

         21  besides going up and down the stairs and getting

         22  lost in the stations.

         23                 So, there are disabilities that

         24  involve balance or involve just a vulnerability to

         25  getting stepped on.  There are even some
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          2  psychological disabilities that prevent people from

          3  being on public transit, or they may occasionally be

          4  able to take it at 3 o'clock in the morning in the

          5  South Bronx because there's nobody else there, but

          6  they just can't take it on a regular basis because

          7  it's too dangerous for them.  And MS, any number of

          8  conditions, even some people with epilepsy where

          9  they have an easily triggered seizure, it's

         10  difficult to be around the loud sounds of the

         11  subway, that's dangerous for them.  So, there are

         12  many conditions that you can't see that can make it

         13  hard to use public transportation safely.

         14                 Another thing is there are people who

         15  use wheelchairs but can still walk a little bit, and

         16  many of them don't use the motorized wheelchairs,

         17  they'll use the folding wheelchairs, which means

         18  they could take a taxi if they are capable of

         19  standing up, moving from the wheelchair into the

         20  vehicle.  So, I'll be talking a little bit more

         21  about that later.

         22                 But now, back to my regular

         23  testimony.

         24                 CIDNY advocates for the rights of

         25  people with all kinds of disabilities, and promotes
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          2  the full inclusion of people with disabilities into

          3  all aspects of community life.

          4                 I do want to acknowledge that the

          5  City's Paratransit Program has come a long way since

          6  trips had to be scheduled four days in advance, and

          7  it was considered acceptable to have a six percent

          8  denial rate for a request for rides.  Now the

          9  advanced time for scheduling is down to a single

         10  day, and the official denial rate is under one

         11  percent.

         12                 But there are still some problems

         13  with Access- A Ride.  It is not  --  it's supposed

         14  to be a parallel to the public transport system, and

         15  it's nowhere near as convenient and responsive as

         16  the subway system and bus system are for people who

         17  can use them.  There is no parallel in the

         18  mainstream transit system for Access- A- Rides'

         19  policy of punishing riders who don't show up for

         20  rides, or cancel them too late.  If you miss as many

         21  trains as you want, you're never going to have your

         22  MetroCard taken away.  But if a person with a

         23  disability misses more than seven rides in any six-

         24  month period, that is grounds for suspending that

         25  persons' right to use Access-A-Ride.  This doesn't
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          2  make sense because many people's disability can

          3  cause symptoms that can prevent them from using

          4  rides, they may have to miss appointments.

          5                 It makes even less sense to penalize

          6  people for late cancellations, which are defined as

          7  we've heard, as any cancellation later than 5 p.m.

          8  The night before a scheduled trip. A late

          9  cancellation counts as much as a no show, seven of

         10  those also means that you can have your privileges

         11  temporarily revoked. So, I've heard of people who

         12  will take a ride that they no longer need because

         13  something was cancelled just because they are afraid

         14  of jeopardizing their right to use Access-A-Ride,

         15  and they'll go sit around someplace for a couple of

         16  hours, in a doctors office after the doctor

         17  cancelled their appointment because they're just so

         18  afraid of loosing their right to use Access- A-

         19  Ride.

         20                 Another problem is always these

         21  indirect routes by paratransit vehicles and we heard

         22  from Access-A-Ride that they have some of this new

         23  system in, and they're getting better with their

         24  routes, but one of our employees who uses

         25  Access-A-Ride daily to get to work said that last
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          2  month she was taken on one and- a- half hour tour of

          3  Manhattan when she was trying to just go eight

          4  blocks from her home to our office.

          5                 One of things that we think that

          6  would help for the MTA to get better at planning

          7  routes would be if they judged themselves on the on

          8  time arrivals of passengers, instead of on time

          9  pickups.  They don't keep track of how many

         10  passengers arrive at the time that they were trying

         11  to get somewhere.  They keep track of how many

         12  passengers are picked up on time.  So, if you go on

         13  a two- hour detour, that counts as being on time

         14  because they picked you up at the right time.  So,

         15  we would like to suggest that they use a different

         16  metric to measure their success, and I did read

         17  about the new electronic system they have that it

         18  can record things, like when they pickup people, and

         19  when they drop people off.  So, they have the

         20  technical capacity to do that now.

         21                 Then there's a few other problems

         22  that have been mentioned already but I think they're

         23  worth mentioning again that could be resolved with

         24  the new technology.  One is the need for emergency

         25  scheduling on less than 24 hour notice.  We were
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          2  happy to hear that there soon may soon be same day

          3  scheduling, and we hope to see it.

          4                 Another is the long waits for rescue

          5  rides

          6  when somebody's ride doesn't show up, or actually

          7  that's when it is  -- they don't get a rescue ride

          8  when they didn't have a ride scheduled, it's only

          9  when the ride didn't show up, or when they had to

         10  delay their pickup time on a return trip.

         11                 Then there's the problem of the poor

         12  communication, which we're still hearing about even

         13  though technology has taken steps forward.  We're

         14  still hearing about people waiting on different

         15  sides of a building, the passengers' waiting on one

         16  side, the drivers waiting on the other, and they

         17  miss each other, and that really shouldn't be

         18  happening today.

         19                 Then there are some concerns that

         20  have nothing to do with advanced technology.  The

         21  biggest complaint we hear about maintenance is that

         22  many Access-A-Ride vehicles still have really bad

         23  shock absorbers, which means that the rides are very

         24  bumpy, and that's not just unpleasant for people

         25  with certain spinal conditions or with bedsores, or

                                                            109

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND MENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  many other conditions to be bumped around on a ride,

          3  it's dangerous and painful, and they shouldn't have

          4  to endure that.

          5                 Then these two things that only

          6  affect a few consumers but they're very important to

          7  them.  One is with these black car companies, I

          8  mentioned earlier the issue of people who use

          9  wheelchairs but are slightly ambulatory and have

         10  folding wheelchairs, they're sometimes told by the

         11  drivers of the black cars that their companies are

         12  not allowed to pickup wheelchair users.  That's

         13  backwards, their cars are often not able to pickup

         14  wheelchair users if they don't have a folding

         15  wheelchair, and the person can't transfer but it's

         16  still a violation of the ADA for any company to have

         17  a policy to that they're not going to pickup people

         18  in wheelchairs, and the fact that these are City

         19  contractors, not City, they're State contractors,

         20  the State is also subject to the ADA and is supposed

         21  to be enforcing it's contractors.  They really need

         22  to educate those companies that they can't turn

         23  somebody away because they use a folding wheelchair.

         24                 Then the last point that we've heard

         25  problems with was mentioned just now about the
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          2  Bronx, and it also holds true for Queens, that

          3  people who are going right over the border have to

          4  make these ridiculous changes, and it's hard enough

          5  to get any place on one Access-A-Ride, but when

          6  you're using two services from different counties,

          7  trying to coordinate them is just ridiculous.  There

          8  is as part of the ADA, in the regulations, the

          9  governed transportation, the definition of what it's

         10  supposed to be is that if the person who's going

         11  within three- quarters of mile of a bus stop or

         12  train station, the Access-A-Ride geographic district

         13  should extend to three- quarters of a mile from

         14  every subway station or bus stop in the area, which

         15  means that if somebody's going to a place three-

         16  quarters of a mile away from a city bus stop, even

         17  though it's over a border into Queens or

         18  Westchester, the Access-A-Ride is really bound under

         19  the ADA to go there, and they have decided to defy

         20  the ADA by limiting their geographic access to the

         21  city borders.  The FTA noted this several years ago,

         22  and said that they should change it, and they

         23  haven't changed it yet.

         24                 Those are my comments for today.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much
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          2  for your time this afternoon.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  On the last

          4  point, who complained about it?  You said the F--

          5                 MS. OSTREICHER:  The FTA, the Federal

          6  Transportation Administration.

          7                 MR. HARRIS:  Yes, the Federal

          8  Transportation Administration, which is the division

          9  of the United States Department of Transportation

         10  that has the direct oversight over both transit

         11  systems reported that this was, in fact, illegal. It

         12  is still happening, it's still a widespread problem

         13  of these forced transfers.  There are literally

         14  buses that go three blocks into Riverdale, and if

         15  you want to take a paratransit trip there, you have

         16  to stop on the Yonkers side, walk across the border,

         17  and switch to a paratransit van to go three dollars

         18  and pay second fare on that ride, to go 3 dollars

         19  because the vans won't go the extra three blocks.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  If this is a

         21  requirement law, has anyone sought to get the, I

         22  guess the MTA to enforce it or to follow it?

         23                 MR. HARRIS:  We have, and the MTA's

         24  response is, "we don't cross county lines."  Our

         25  response is, "you legally have to."
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          2                 We've sent them letters about this,

          3  we've sent formal complaints about this, and they

          4  keep maintaining that it's legal.  I just want to

          5  make one quick--

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Well what I

          7  think we'll do, since I don't think there's anybody

          8  here anymore.

          9                 Is anybody still here from

         10  Access-A-Ride?  No? Yes?

         11                 Maybe you could make note then of

         12  these things, including the last one, but the whole

         13  series.  Because what I was saying is we could have

         14  the staff do a summary of the comments of the

         15  riders, and seek to get some feedback to the

         16  concerns.

         17                 MR. HARRIS:  If I could just quickly

         18  note, she touched on this, with regard to the

         19  penalties that are invoked against a few of the late

         20  cancellations.

         21                 You can't appeal an individual

         22  penalty.  You can only appeal those penalties once

         23  you're service has been suspended.  So, when they

         24  assess a penalty on you for being late, a late

         25  cancellation or a no show, you can't appeal that
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          2  penalty immediately.  You have to wait until after

          3  they've already suspended your service to appeal

          4  that.

          5                 Even if you were outside on time, and

          6  they claim you to be a no show, you can't appeal

          7  that until they suspend your service seven trips

          8  later, and that should be noted for the record.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 MR. HARRIS:  Thank you.

         12                 MS. OSTREICHER:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  We need to make a

         14  slight modification to our witness list.  I would

         15  like to call for testimony right now, Courtney

         16  Gross, who has an Access-A-Ride appointment shortly.

         17                 Ms. Gross, please join us and also

         18  Pat Dolan and Reed Craig, also join us at the

         19  witness table.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Could the

         21  Sergeant please escort her?

         22                 Sergeant, could you escort the

         23  witness?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me note for the

         25  record that Adele Bender has submitted written
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          2  testimony on behalf of JPAC for Older Adults.

          3  That's Joint Public Affairs Committee for Older

          4  Adults, sponsored by the Jewish Association for

          5  Services for the Aged.

          6                 MS. GROSS:  Good afternoon everyone.

          7  I am Courtney Gross. I am here from the Staten

          8  Island Center for Independent Living.

          9                 I just wanted to  --  I will read

         10  what I have prepared first, but then I have a

         11  comment to make in reference to voucher service.

         12                 Access-A-Ride has provided many

         13  individuals with disabilities with a means to travel

         14  throughout the five boroughs of New York City for

         15  the same price that individuals without disabilities

         16  pay for public transportation.  While the added

         17  benefit of being driven door- to- door makes this

         18  service accessible, safer, and more convenient for

         19  some of these individuals, there are still

         20  improvements that need to be made.           For

         21  example I have been stranded, spoken to

         22  disrespectfully, passed over, dropped off at

         23  incorrect locations, and improperly assisted.  These

         24  are situations that can and should be remedied.

         25                 Most recently, I was left standing
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          2  outside my job juring a downpour for two hours.  The

          3  first time I called the transit control department,

          4  they agent was unable to reach the dispatcher for

          5  ten minutes.  When he finally did, the dispatcher

          6  was unable to locate the driver.  In the end, I was

          7  asked to call back a few moments later.  Each time

          8  thereafter, I was told that the van would arrive in

          9  approximately, and here we go with the famous

         10  phrase, ten minutes, which it did not.  The final

         11  time that I called, I was informed that the driver

         12  was stuck in traffic on the Verrazano Bridge, which

         13  meant that he would not arrive for at least another

         14  thirty minutes or so.  Perhaps, if there had been a

         15  more reliable and efficient means of communication

         16  between the three parties; the driver, the

         17  dispatcher, and the transit control agent, I would

         18  have been able to obtain a more accurate wait time.

         19  In addition, I could have decided whether or not I

         20  wanted to wait for my ride or request a car service

         21  voucher at an earlier time.

         22                 Even more upsetting and infuriating

         23  are those situations in which drivers claim that

         24  they are at locations when it is easy to prove that

         25  they are not.  An example of this occurred this past
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          2  Friday when the Executive Director of The Staten

          3  Island Center for Independent Living, Dorothy Doran,

          4  and her guide dog were left stranded at Yankee

          5  Stadium after attending an accessibility assessment

          6  meeting.  Not only was her Access-A-Ride an hour

          7  late in picking her up from the office to drive her

          8  to the Stadium, but it did not arrive to take her

          9  home. After waiting for almost two hours, she called

         10  the transit control department in order to find out

         11  the location of her ride. She was told that the

         12  driver said he was at Gate 5 and after waiting for a

         13  while, and not seeing her, had driven away. Although

         14  Mrs. Doran explained that there was no Gate 5 at

         15  Yankee Stadium, she was forced to pay for the

         16  driver's fabrication, literally.  When she was

         17  finally able to procure a cab, her aggravation level

         18  was only compounded by the drivers lack of knowledge

         19  of the English language, as well as the way to

         20  Staten Island.  So, she had to pay from Yankee

         21  Stadium all the way to Staten Island, which is a

         22  very, very, very steep price.  He became lost

         23  numerous times, and by following the directions that

         24  Mrs. Doran, a visually impaired woman gave him, the

         25  driver was finally able to find her home.
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          2                 This situation should have not

          3  occurred.  If Mrs. Doran had not had the amount of

          4  money necessary for her cab fare home, who knows the

          5  length of time she would have been waiting for a new

          6  Access-A-Ride to be scheduled.

          7                 Now, the thing I was going to say

          8  about the voucher is, I recently found out,

          9  unfortunately too late, that vouchers, taxi

         10  authorizations, are no longer given for rides from

         11  Manhattan to Staten Island.  How I found that out

         12  was, I was stranded in Manhattan.  I attended a

         13  meeting on 65th Street I believe it was a few months

         14  ago, or 69th Street, and where I live on Staten

         15  Island is almost New Jersey.  I attended a meeting

         16  for my supervisor, and the Access-A-Ride never came

         17  to pick me up. So, I had to call Access-A-Ride and

         18  obtain a taxi authorization number so that I could

         19  be reimbursed, and the price for this trip was about

         20  $90.00.  Fortunately I had gotten paid the day

         21  before, so the taxi service trusted me, and knew me,

         22  so when I got home I paid them the fare and I sent

         23  in my receipt, and I got a note back, a letter back,

         24  stating that I was not going to receive any

         25  reimbursement because they were no longer providing
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          2  reimbursements for individuals who were traveling

          3  from Manhattan to Staten Island.  When I called up

          4  to find out about this new policy that I'd never

          5  heard of before, I got different answers from

          6  different people.  I went back and forth with this

          7  issue for quite a few months until finally I got a

          8  phone call from somebody telling me that I didn't

          9  know what I was talking about, and it was a really

         10  very disappointing experience, and I let this

         11  individual know, and this individual was a

         12  supervisor, I let them know what I had been going

         13  through and arguing back and forth, and finally they

         14  said, "I'll check it out and get back to you." This

         15  individual called me back and said, "you know what,

         16  this policy was just recently changed, I was

         17  unaware, nobody else knows about it."  So, I just

         18  found out about it, and it's very disappointing that

         19  all these people have no idea, and there's probably

         20  many other Staten Islander's who sent in receipts

         21  for a ton of money, and haven't gotten reimbursed.

         22                 So, I feel like there's a lack of

         23  communication, and a lot of consumers that send in

         24  receipts and are out of a lot of money, and don't

         25  know it.  So, something needs to be done. Like I
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          2  said, I'm out of almost $100.00 because of that.

          3                 Thank you very much for letting me be

          4  able to express my concerns.  I appreciate that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  I'm going to

          6  interrupt just for a minute, just to ask, when the

          7  Access-A-Ride didn't come you said you asked for a

          8  voucher, is that right?

          9                 MS. GROSS:  No, a taxi authorization

         10  number.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Did you tell

         12  them at that point that you were going to Staten

         13  Island?

         14                 MS. GROSS:  Oh yes, yes.  I told

         15  them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  And you got the

         17  authorization number from the Access-A-Ride people?

         18                 MS. GROSS:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Okay, well

         20  Access-A-Ride has a representative here.

         21                 I would ask you if you would see Ms.

         22  Gross before you leave, and I think absolutely they

         23  owe you the money.

         24                 MS. GROSS:  This was quite a few

         25  months ago.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  It doesn't

          3  matter, it doesn't matter.  They owe you the money,

          4  and if they don't give you the money promptly, you

          5  contact my office.

          6                 MS. GROSS:  Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Okay?

          8                 MS. GROSS:  Thank you very much, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  But I think

         10  that the Access-A-Ride people are here, and they'll

         11  look into it I'm sure.

         12                 MS. GROSS:  Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  If they

         14  authorized you with the voucher number, they have to

         15  reimburse you.

         16                 MS. GROSS:  Okay, I'll get a copy of

         17  the receipt from my job.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  And I don't

         19  understand that policy.  I think that's another

         20  thing we'd like to have an explanation of.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 MS. GROSS:  Thank you very much,

         23  thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Chair

         25  Koppell.  And thank you, Ms. Gross, for testifying.
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          2  We would like to excuse you in advance of the rest

          3  of the panel so that you can catch your ride.

          4                 MS. GROSS:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I would like to ask

          6  Sergeant to please provide some assistance.

          7                 Thank you, Ms. Gross, and come back

          8  often.

          9                 Next we invite Pat Dolan to testify.

         10                 Good to see you again, Pat.

         11                 MS. DOLAN:  It's always good to see

         12  you, John.

         13                 Good afternoon, it's hard for me to

         14  get used to calling you Chairman Liu, and Chairman

         15  Koppell, and members of the council.

         16                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         17  comment on Access-A-Ride, an essential

         18  transportation program for disabled seniors.

         19                 My name is Patricia Dolan.  I am the

         20  Director of Queens Connection, a program that

         21  coordinates para- transportation in the borough of

         22  Queens for our seniors.

         23                 The program is sponsored by the

         24  Borough President, and is a program of the Forest

         25  Hills Community House.
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          2                 Fifteen years of working with Queens

          3  seniors' transportation needs has given me a unique

          4  vantage point from which to comment on

          5  Access-A-Ride.  Fifteen years ago Access- A Ride was

          6  mostly empty buses passing by disabled people.

          7  Access A- Ride has come a long way, and no one can

          8  deny it, least of all, riders of Access-A-Ride and

          9  advocates for them.

         10                 But it has a long way to go.

         11                 For many disabled seniors who make up

         12  more than a third of their ridership, Access-A-Ride

         13  is the difference between isolation and, at least, a

         14  limited capability of taking care of one's self.

         15  Our Queens senior transportation programs, which

         16  thanks to the City Council under the leadership of

         17  Councilman Liu, are now receiving additional

         18  operating funds, operate more than 100 vans, but are

         19  still unable to provide the regular on demand

         20  transportation that is crucial to independent living

         21  by our seniors.

         22                 As seniors age, many lose mobility.

         23  The disabilities of age may go beyond physical

         24  frailty and sometimes include mental impairments

         25  that make using mass public transit impossible.
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          2                 I'd like to digress here for a moment

          3  because Councilman Koppell has been asking questions

          4  about people who don't use wheelchairs.  Many of our

          5  senior citizens, unfortunately, suffer from

          6  dementia, Alzheimer's diseases, and other mental

          7  impairments.  These people are completely unable to

          8  travel by public transportation.  They may be

          9  physically able to get on a bus or subway, but they

         10  cannot travel on a bus or subway, and it is not

         11  reasonable or within the capacity of anyone to think

         12  that they can do so.  The same is true with some of

         13  their physical impairments.  A person can have a

         14  severe heart condition, for instance, which enables

         15  him or her to walk along the street between his home

         16  and a senior center, but he can't wait at a bus stop

         17  and board a bus with those steep steps, or get on

         18  and off a subway station.  Those people are  --

         19  they rely on Access-A-Ride or some other kind of

         20  paratransit.  That's the only option they have. If

         21  they don't have that transportation, they stay home

         22  and look at four walls, and after a while they end

         23  up in nursing homes where they cost us a great deal

         24  more money than a ride on Access- A- Ride.

         25                 Access- A- Ride's biggest challenge
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          2  is reliability. Too many riders complain of long

          3  waits, which we've heard of this afternoon, for

          4  pickups and return trips.  Some riders become so

          5  fearful of being stranded that they abandon the

          6  service altogether, and come to rely on families,

          7  friends or neighbors for transportation, which is

          8  almost some times is impossible for them to get.

          9                 Qualifying for Access-A-Ride is too

         10  difficult for many of our disabled seniors.  The MTA

         11  should qualify applicants whose medical providers

         12  assert the applicant's imminent need for disabling

         13  therapies or procedures.  I will give you an

         14  example. Let us say that a person is about to have a

         15  hip replacement or knee replacement, he may at this

         16  moment before he goes into the hospital, be able

         17  even if he's struggling, to use public

         18  transportation.  He applies for Access-A-Ride, and

         19  most often he will be turned down until he actually

         20  has the surgery, and he is in fact disabled,

         21  although he knows that he will be, let's say in two

         22  weeks.  Access-A-Ride can take three weeks to

         23  qualify an applicant for service.  That three week

         24  period very often results in a fully qualified

         25  person being unable to travel at all, and it seems
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          2  to us that this unfair.

          3                 Finally, Governor Pataki vetoed the

          4  Padavan- Weprin bill last spring, I should say last

          5  fall, which passed the last legislative session, in

          6  both Houses unanimously, I might add. The bill would

          7  have extended the service area five miles into

          8  Nassau.

          9                 Riders living in eastern Queens would

         10  have been able to access the hospitals located close

         11  in Nassau.  Instead, they must make an exceedingly

         12  cumbersome transfer from a New York City Transit van

         13  to an Able van, which is operated by Nassau. They

         14  just won't do it.  We have seniors who will come to

         15  us and say, "I made the transfer at LIJ, I took

         16  Access-A-Ride from let's say Bayside to Long Island

         17  Jewish Hospital, to their main entrance, I got off,

         18  I waited for an hour for the Able van, and then I

         19  repeated the procedure coming home.  I will never do

         20  this again.  I will die before I will do this

         21  again."  They then just don't do it.

         22                 The Governor vetoed the legislation,

         23  we understand, at the request of the MTA.  You had

         24  previous speakers here who talked about similar

         25  experiences of Bronx residents wanting to go into
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          2  Nassau or vice- a- versa, we have asked Assemblyman

          3  Weprin and Senator Padavan to resubmit the bill in

          4  the next session.  They have both indicated interest

          5  in changing the bills so it would include all riders

          6  having the similar experiences in other border

          7  areas, such as Westchester or the Bronx.  With the

          8  support of the City Council, I suspect that the new

          9  governor will be more likely to sign such a bill.

         10                 I want to thank you very much for

         11  this opportunity to discuss Access-A-Ride.  I could

         12  go on for another hour or two, but I think that

         13  there are a lot of other people who would like to

         14  have their say.

         15                 So, I'm going to thank you again, and

         16  turn the microphone over to my colleagues.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Pat.

         18                 Mr. Craig.

         19                 MR. CRAIG:  Good afternoon.  I am

         20  Reed Craig, Operations Manager for Park Slope

         21  Geriatric Day Center.

         22                 For over 23 years, our red buses have

         23  traveled the entire borough of Brooklyn shuttling

         24  physically frail elders and those with Alzheimer's

         25  and related dementias to adult day centers, senior
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          2  centers, doctors appointments, and for food

          3  shopping.

          4                 Having grown from one van to nine

          5  vans today, and providing over 22,000 trips per

          6  year, we are a lifeline to isolated and disabled

          7  seniors needing access to critical community- based

          8  services.  Our centers, and the transportation

          9  services we provide, help elders avoid nursing homes

         10  and enable caregivers to get to work and care for

         11  their children.

         12                 In the past several years, the costs

         13  associated with managing our transportation program

         14  have skyrocketed.  The funding required for our

         15  transportation program; insurance, drivers,

         16  gasoline, operating costs, is projected at over

         17  $480,000 for the current Fiscal Year, up from

         18  $268,000 for Fiscal Year 2003.  In this same period,

         19  our vehicle insurance rates have increased over 47

         20  percent.  This is due, in part, to a dearth of

         21  insurance providers offering coverage, and the lack

         22  of competition within the industry.  Fuel costs at

         23  pre- hurricane Katrina rates spiraled upwards of 50

         24  percent in the last two years.  Concurrently,

         25  vehicle repair and maintenance costs have risen 45
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          2  percent in the same time period.

          3                 Studies by AARP, and others have

          4  found that coordination efforts among the senior

          5  service transportation providers and public transit

          6  services can offer many benefits, including lower

          7  cost trips, and better quality of on demand service.

          8    We have not done this in New York City.

          9                 We need to take a close look at

         10  Access-A-Ride and how our existing infrastructures

         11  can coordinate more effectively to achieve

         12  meaningful outcomes.  We recommend the City Council

         13  take up the issue of Access-A-Ride and how,

         14  together, we can better meet the real need of

         15  community members with disabilities.              Programs

         16  like ours would refer many of our clients to

         17  Access-A-Ride if we could count on a reliable and

         18  timely service.  We cannot, and therefore, opt to

         19  provide transportation services ourselves.  We

         20  believe that the City Council is in a unique

         21  leadership position to reach out to Access-A-Ride,

         22  the New York Metropolitan Transportation Council,

         23  the FTA's Coordination Committee for Action and

         24  Mobility, and the aging network to convene

         25  community- based meetings to explore how we might
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          2  bridge the divide, and begin to think about better

          3  coordinating service to seniors most at risk.

          4                 What we have experienced at PSGDC

          5  with the explosion in costs associated with

          6  transporting Brooklyn's most vulnerable seniors has

          7  literally brought us to our knees.  Many of my

          8  colleagues in other cross- disability service

          9  sectors have opted to limit or end services all

         10  together.

         11                 I am concerned that without the right

         12  leadership to progress in a new direction, we will

         13  see a spike in the number of isolated seniors who

         14  are not receiving critical community based services.

         15    We will see an increase in service requests to a

         16  one- size- fits- all Access-A-Ride system not

         17  meeting the basics of getting folks where they need

         18  to go, and when they need to get there.  We will see

         19  costs pushing more and more health and social

         20  service providers away from offering specialized

         21  transportation services, and we will see our seniors

         22  prematurely institutionalized in nursing homes and

         23  medical facilities.  This would be a tragedy.

         24                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         25  present our viewpoint.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

          3  much, Mr. Craig.

          4                 Just wanted to note that I think your

          5  testimony is very interesting, and we'll probably

          6  ask you to come in for a meeting to discuss some of

          7  the ideas you have here.

          8                 MR. CRAIG:  Certainly.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Wait, before

         11  you go.

         12                 MR. CRAIG:  Yes sir.

         13                 What is the outcome of your  --  what

         14  are your recommendations here?  Because you're

         15  basically saying Access- A Ride, being one- size-

         16  fits- all, doesn't meet certain needs, right? That's

         17  what you're saying.

         18                 MR. CRAIG:  Yes sir, I am saying that

         19  we have within the senior community existing

         20  transportation infrastructure that may be melded in

         21  with Access-A-Ride, and both sides can help the

         22  other working to meet the needs of seniors better.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So what needs

         24  are you fulfilling that Access-A-Ride isn't?

         25                 MR. CRAIG:  Well, currently we run
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          2  two senior centers.  One for physically frail, and

          3  one for Alzheimer's clients and other dementia-

          4  related diseases.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  You pick up

          6  people to come to your center and go home?

          7                 MR. CRAIG:  Right, we also provide

          8  services for taking people to other senior citizen

          9  centers, and some medical and shopping trips.  Most

         10  of the seniors that deal with us have Access-A-Ride

         11  available but won't use it for the timeliness.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  For the

         13  timeliness you say?

         14                 MR. CRAIG:  Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  So that's the

         16  basic concern.  That Access-A-Ride doesn't provide

         17  prompt service.

         18                 MR. CRAIG:  Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  What Mr. Craig here

         21  is addressing is also a problem that has been

         22  highlighted by a number of the groups based in

         23  Queens and Manhattan, as well, which is that

         24  precisely the services that the senior centers

         25  provide are here for seniors who are not necessarily
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          2  physically disabled.

          3                 Whereas, for paratransit and

          4  Access-A-Ride, that service is not geared towards

          5  seniors, but geared towards people who are

          6  physically disabled, to the extent that there's an

          7  overlap  --  some of their services may be better

          8  provided by senior centers who have van

          9  transportation options, and those rides, perhaps,

         10  can be provided much more effectively both

         11  operationally and cost- wise, by the senior centers

         12  as opposed to by Access-A-Ride, which really has to

         13  take care of the truly physically disabled.

         14                 This is why I think it will be very

         15  fruitful for us to have a more detailed discussion

         16  about this.

         17                 MR. CRAIG:  Certainly.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         19  much, and Pat Dolan who you testified with has also

         20  been talking about this issue for many years now.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 We have two people remaining to

         23  testify, and we truly thank both of you for staying

         24  with us, and for your patience.

         25                 Melissa Rosado and Sharon Bewry, and
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          2  I'd also like to take this opportunity to thank the

          3  officials  --  do you want to testify also?  Okay,

          4  then Sergeants, could you please assist them with

          5  one of these witness statements, and just come up to

          6  the witness table.

          7                 MS. BEWRY:  He needs to catch his

          8  ride.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Oh okay, he needs

         10  to catch a ride.  I apologize.

         11                 MS. BEWRY:  My ride is also due at 4

         12  o'clock, Access-A-Ride, I'll have to be real quick.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, you know

         14  what, then I apologize because both of you have

         15  missed your rides.

         16                 MS. BEWRY:  Well, they're going to

         17  call me.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, they are

         19  waiting, okay.

         20                 Well then, just come on up.  I think

         21  we'll be done in a few minutes, and I do want to

         22  thank the officials from Access-A-Ride for staying

         23  the entire length of this hearing, and for actually

         24  taking some requests directly.  We do appreciate

         25  that.

                                                            134

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND MENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2                 MS. BEWRY:  I almost feel redundant

          3  to say some of the stuff I am about to say because

          4  some of it has already been said.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  No, no, don't  --

          6  just because other people have said it, you should

          7  not be discouraged from saying it again.

          8                 MS. BEWRY:  Okay, I have been

          9  supervising a group home for the disabled for 28

         10  years.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Could you identify

         12  yourself for the record?

         13                 MS. BEWRY:  My name is Sharon Bewry,

         14  and I live in the Bronx and work in Brooklyn.

         15                 I have been supervising the group

         16  home for over 28 years.  Within the last two years I

         17  became disabled, and needed the services of

         18  Access-A-Ride, otherwise I would not have a job. I

         19  think it's really one of the best things about New

         20  York City, and it just needs to be improved.

         21                 The gentlemen who spoke earlier on

         22  behalf of Access-A-Ride, I am not sure where he gets

         23  his figures, but I guess I fall into the category of

         24  the unfortunate.

         25                 Within my first month, and I've been

                                                            135

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND MENTAL HEALTH COMMITTEES

          2  with Access A- Ride a little less than a year, but

          3  within my first month of being an Access-A-Ride

          4  patron, my van was in an accident, making me two

          5  hours late for an appointment.  When I called

          6  Access- A Ride to ask if I could have my pickup

          7  pushed back by an hour, they told me, "Sorry, if you

          8  don't make your current appointment, you're going to

          9  miss the ride.  We have no other vehicle available

         10  for you."

         11                 I remember one afternoon having stood

         12  outside on the stoop of my job waiting to be picked

         13  up.  I saw the van cruising by.  One of my young

         14  workers who could run, another worker said to him,

         15   "could you stop the van?"  I am hopping down the

         16  block with my cane and my bag.  The guy stops the

         17  driver at the stop light.  The man could see me

         18  through the rear view mirror, and the worker said,

         19   "she's coming, don't leave her." They guy said,

         20   "well, my dispatcher said to leave."  And he just

         21  drove off with me standing in the middle of the

         22  street.  That evening, I had a funeral to attend.  I

         23  did call them, and I

         24  explained what happened, and they did give me a cab

         25  two hours later to get to the funeral.
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          2                 I hear it's a myth, that the

          3  scheduling that is done for the Access-A-Ride

          4  riders, it's not been done through a computer in

          5  Texas, I was told that years ago, you know when I

          6  first started.  I don't know if that's true or not.

          7  However the way things are, it really seems as if

          8  it's that way sometimes.

          9                 I have been picked up at my job in

         10  Fort Green, taken cross- town to Ocean Parkway to

         11  pick up two people, and brought back two blocks from

         12  where I was picked up for those two people to be

         13  dropped off, then taken to Queens for two other

         14  pickups and drop- offs before I reached the Bronx.

         15  Some mornings I have been to every borough except

         16  Staten Island, between Bronx and Brooklyn where I

         17  work.  They have passed my exit, gone beyond and

         18  I'll say, "why don't you just get off here, you're

         19  going to cruise by here anyway?"  The driver will

         20  say, "I have to follow my manifest."

         21                 The voucher system is great but cabs

         22  are never on time.  I have had an 8 a.m. pickup and

         23  8:45 they still don't have a car, nor do they know

         24  when they even have one.  So, I just have to wait.

         25  I've waited at my physical therapist up to three
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          2  hours to be taken to work, then in 90 degree

          3  weather, a non- air conditioned vehicle will come.

          4                 One particular afternoon, the driver

          5  I asked him, "would you please open the window for

          6  me?"  It was 90 degrees, no air- conditioning.  He

          7  said, "do it yourself."  I said, "excuse me sir, I

          8  am unable to get up, my sugar is low, right now I

          9  need to have something in my bag so I don't pass out

         10  in your van."  "Well miss, too bad."  The guy was

         11  literally foaming at the mouth.  He was so hot and

         12  bothered himself.  After he became totally

         13  inappropriate coming into my face, I was able to get

         14  him calm and asked, "are you able to drive me safely

         15  to Brooklyn?"  He sat down, calmed down and said,

         16   "yes, I can."

         17                 So at this point, it seems as if

         18  these drivers are totally not trained for the job.

         19  A lot of them feel unsupported, and they're not

         20  effective a lot of the times in the things that they

         21  do.

         22                 Just recently I saw in two of the

         23  vans, signs that give  --  outline the

         24  responsibilities of the driver, and the

         25  responsibilities of the passenger, and it was
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          2  wonderful to see but I've only seen it on two vans

          3  in the last year that I've been doing Access- A-

          4  Ride.

          5                 I don't know if any of you have ever

          6  been on one of the vans but I've said to many of the

          7  drivers, "if a pregnant woman comes near your step,

          8  send her home, she wants to keep her child."  That's

          9  how uncomfortable and bumpy the rides are.

         10                 There are  --  most of the buses if

         11  it's not a humming in the system, it's the clanging

         12  of the seat belts that drive you utterly nuts.  You

         13  cannot hear yourself think.  That's how loud and

         14  uncomfortable the ride is.

         15                 I am just hoping that somehow

         16  something can be done.  I need the service.  I

         17  cannot do without it.  Without this I won't have a

         18  job.  Many of my consumers at work they also needed

         19  to get to their day programs, and many of them have

         20  lost their jobs because the day programs expect them

         21  at a certain time, and the pickups are so late.

         22                 So, I am really hoping that we can do

         23  something because this is a fabulous system but one

         24  that's poorly run.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Mr.

          3  Bewry.

          4                 Ms. Rosado, can you bear with us and

          5  we'll allow Mr. Santos (sic)?  He needs to catch a

          6  ride also.

          7                 Mr. Marizen Santos (sic), and if you

          8  could make sure that the mic is close.

          9                 MS. SANTOS:  My name is Marizen

         10  Santos.  I am speaking on behalf of Mr. Harvey Pacht

         11  who  --  he's on his way to Brooklyn to assist his

         12  daughter with her Access-A-Ride pickup.

         13                 Mr. Harvey Pacht is the Co- founder

         14  of Self Advocacy Association of New York State.  It

         15  is a non- profit organization for and by people with

         16  developmental disabilities.

         17                 Since Mr. Pacht's daughter is a

         18  subscriber, he assists his daughter and attends to

         19  her trips.  So, he's affected by the paratransit

         20  service as well.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is this Mr. Pacht?

         22                 MS. SANTOS:  Yes, I'm speaking on

         23  behalf of  -- this is Mr. Joseph Perez.  He's also a

         24  self- advocate, a member of the Self- Advocacy

         25  Association.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

          3                 MS. SANTOS:  For one thing, I beleive

          4  that the paratransit service needs to be re-

          5  evaluated on a periodic schedule such as semi-

          6  annual or once every year.  This way we can see as

          7  to what kinds of improvements are necessary.

          8                 Second, the drivers need to be very

          9  familiar with their most frequent routes.

         10                 Third, each vehicle should have a

         11  satellite navigation system.

         12                 Next, some of the trips should be

         13  timed randomly in order to help Access-A-Ride

         14  estimate more accurately as to how long trips should

         15  take.

         16                 As a reminder, people with

         17  disabilities also have responsibilities toward their

         18  appointments and other commitments and obligations.

         19                 Mr. Perez wishes to speak.

         20                 MR. PEREZ:  And plus, the drivers

         21   --  I notice people that can't see, but the drivers

         22  could come up to us and tell the people that they

         23  are there for Access-A-Ride.

         24                 They don't  --  some of the drivers

         25  don't have their uniforms on.  I mean, heck, we know
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          2  they are there even though they got their vans, but

          3  we've got to have ID's on us.  I always have my ID,

          4  and they ask me if I have my ID.  They should

          5  actually have their uniform on, whoever comes to

          6  pick us up because it's not  --  if the cops ever

          7  stopped them, what are they going to prove?  They

          8  got the van but that's not right. They should be

          9  dressed properly.  Some of them are not dressed

         10  properly.  They just go out and they don't present

         11  themselves and say, "good morning."  They've got an

         12  attitude.  I mean come on, we're people.  We are

         13  trying to be helpful to them to give them

         14  directions.  I was supposed to be at office at 9

         15  o'clock in the morning.  She's been calling me to

         16  find out how long it's going to take me to get to my

         17  office.  I don't have to get her to come to my

         18  office at 9 o'clock if she's  --  if I'm not going

         19  to be there.  She works for me, and she helps me out

         20  for my day.

         21                 So, we've got to work together like a

         22  team, and I'm helping Self- Advocacy too, to

         23  advocate for the drivers and the buses are not safe

         24  anymore because the drivers don't go into the office

         25  and say, "this van is now working."  Why should they
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          2  get penalized because they have to take out vans

          3  that are not safe anymore?

          4                 Today, she came with me asked if the

          5  lights on for the lift, for the door.  And she said

          6  that's  --  it comes on automatic when she drives

          7  the van, and that's not safe because we could be

          8  stopped because we have got lights to see everything

          9  but the lift  --  the light by the door are supposed

         10  to be closed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 MR. PEREZ:  I would like to hear a

         14  response from you all from doing what you have to

         15  do.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  We're trying to

         17  see what needs to be done to improve the service,

         18  and we appreciate people who use the service come to

         19  tell us the problems that they have, and we

         20  appreciate hearing the problems that you encounter.

         21                 Thank you, thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         23                 Ms. Rosado, you are today's last but

         24  not least.

         25                 Thank you for being with us this
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          2  entire afternoon, and we look forward to hearing

          3  your testimony.

          4                 MS. ROSADO:  Good afternoon, and

          5  thank you for this opportunity to testify.

          6                 My name is Melissa Rosado.  I am a

          7  Hunter College Policy Intern at VISIONS/Services for

          8  the Blind and Visually Impaired, a not- for- profit

          9  rehabilitation and social service agency.  VISIONS

         10  is celebrating 80 years of service promoting the

         11  independence of people of all ages who are blind and

         12  visually impaired.

         13                 Hundreds of VISIONS clients and staff

         14  use Access A- Ride on a per trip or subscription

         15  basis.  Therefore, the quality of the Access-A-Ride

         16  service is very important.  While there are always

         17  numerous complaints regarding Access-A-Ride by far

         18  the most prevalent type of complaint is drivers who

         19  do not call out for their blind passengers, and then

         20  leave the destination, leaving the passenger

         21  stranded and issued a no show penalty.

         22                 Here is one example that happened

         23  recently.  An Access-A-Ride pulled up at Visions at

         24  Selis Manor on 135 W. 23rd Street.  The awaiting

         25  passenger, who is totally blind asked, "Are you here
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          2  for Katherine?"  The driver said yes and helped her

          3  on board.  When the driver announced that they

          4  arrived at their destination, she questioned where

          5  she was because the sound of the location did not

          6  sound familiar to her.  He said they were in

          7  Brooklyn.  She asked how they could be in Brooklyn,

          8  given that she was Katherine G., and going to the

          9  Bronx.  He said that his passenger was supposed to

         10  be Barbara, going to Brooklyn.  This illustrates

         11  that often the drivers do not fully confirm which

         12  passenger and which destination he or she is going

         13  to, nor do they ask for ID.

         14                 In addition to uninformed drivers,

         15  consumer can often wait several hours for a

         16  scheduled pickup.  When stranded, consumers are told

         17  they can take a taxi and be reimbursed. However,

         18  more than half of VISIONS 3,200 consumers are low-

         19  income and cannot afford to lay out the money.

         20                 VISIONS does provide "emergency"

         21  transportation home, at no cost to the consumer,

         22  when consumers are stranded by Access-A-Ride.  These

         23  expenses add up to thousands of dollars each year.

         24                 Our recommendations are a more

         25  efficient and effective scheduling and routing
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          2  system.  A mechanism for VISIONS to get reimbursed

          3  directly by Access-A-Ride for the expenses including

          4  car service for consumers stranded by Access-A-Ride.

          5  Guaranteed transportation without a requirement for

          6  out of pocket expense by the consumer, and better

          7  sensitivity training for the Access-A-Ride drivers.

          8                 Access-A-Ride is an important service

          9  but need to improve its reliability and

         10  consumer/driver interactions.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         13  much, Ms. Rosado.

         14                 How long have you been an intern?

         15                 MS. ROSADO:  I have been an intern

         16  for a few months, but I've been involved at VISIONS

         17  four years, like five years.  First as an

         18  intergenerational volunteer, than as a counselor at

         19  their camp Upstate, and now as an intern.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And how old were

         21  you  --  no, no what grade were you in when you were

         22  in the intergenerational?

         23                 MS. ROSADO:  I was a sophomore, and

         24  now I am a senior at Hunter College.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Great, this is
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          2  wonderful.  I was not aware of any intergenerational

          3  programs like this.

          4                 Thanks for coming down today.

          5                 MS. ROSADO:  All right, thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Chairman, there

          7  being no other witnesses for today --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  Fine, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:--  of this joint

         10  hearing of the Committee on Mental Health, Mental

         11  Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug Abuse and Disability

         12  Services, and the Committee on Transportation, is

         13  adjourned.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOPPELL:  I want to thank

         15  the Access-A-Ride people for staying for the

         16  hearing.

         17                 Very often nobody stays, and we

         18  appreciate that you are interested enough to remain.

         19                 (Hearing adjourned at 4:15 P.M.)

         20

         21                 (written testimony read into the

         22  record)

         23                 MS. BENDER:  My name is Adele Bender.

         24    I am the Queens Coordinator for JPAC, Joint Public

         25  Affairs Committee for Older Adults.
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          2                 I have heard from some people that

          3  use Access- A Ride that there have been occasions

          4  when drivers did not give sufficient time for the

          5  passenger to come out to the front of the building,

          6  and had driven off without them.  Sometimes due to

          7  inclement weather the person could not wait outside

          8  the building. It may be that the driver had to make

          9  time for other pickups, but it is also important

         10  that they be more sensitive to these passengers who

         11  use Access-A-Ride because they are not in good

         12  health, and really depend upon this service.

         13                 I have also heard from my neighbor

         14  that she thinks Access-A-Ride is a terrific service,

         15  but had an incident whereby they went through the

         16  tunnel from Queens and came out at 38th Street.  She

         17  had to go to 35th Street, and for some reason the

         18  driver took the other passenger who was going all

         19  the way Uptown in Manhattan first, and then came

         20  back to 35th Street.

         21                 One of our JPAC members had ended up

         22  having to wait and take a cab back to Brooklyn

         23  because the driver who was to pick her up did not

         24  check his manifest, nor did he ask for her ID when

         25  the women that she was with also from Brooklyn went
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          2  into the van.  One of the women was scheduled for a

          3  7 p.m. pickup, and the other was scheduled for a

          4  6:50 pickup.

          5                 Fortunately the woman who had to end

          6  up taking the taxi had enough money with her to pay

          7  the taxi cab for a $50.00 trip for which she will be

          8  reimbursed.  However, there are people that either

          9  carry very little money with them or simply don't

         10  have that money to carry with them.  Our JPAC member

         11  to which I refer is not a well woman, and gets out

         12  when her strength permits and should not have to

         13  encounter this situation.

         14                 I don't know how the manifest is

         15  arranged, but about two or three years ago, one of

         16  our members who lived in Floral Park and was picked

         17  up at 3 p.m. in Manhattan at East 5th Street did not

         18  get home until 7 p.m.

         19                 I am certainly not here to bash the

         20  drivers of the vans, as they provide a much needed

         21  service, but I ask that the companies for which they

         22  work please stress upon their drivers the importance

         23  of what they do, and to please be considerate and

         24  evaluate the situation of their passenger in certain

         25  situations like giving the person a chance to get
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          2  out in time to board the van and make sure that they

          3  check the manifest and ID, and ask the destination.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 4:15 p.m.)
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